
UMATILLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
July 6, 2021, 6:00 PM  

Council Chambers, 1 S. Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 
Masks are highly recommended and a limited supply will be available.  Social distancing will 
be observed.  Overflow seating in room behind Chambers. 
Pledge of Allegiance and Prayer 

Please silence your electronic devices 

Call to Order 
Roll Call  

AGENDA REVIEW 

MINUTES REVIEW 
1 Minutes, City Council meeting June 15, 2021 

MAYOR’S MESSAGE 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this point in the meeting, the Umatilla City Council will hear questions, comments and concerns 
from the public. 

Please write your name and address on the paper provided at the podium. Zoning or code 
enforcement matters which may be coming before the Council at a later date should not be discussed 
until such time as they come before the Council in a public hearing.   Comments, questions, and 
concerns from the public regarding items listed on this agenda shall be received at the time the Board 
addresses such items during this meeting. Public comments are generally limited to three minutes. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
2 Corrective Ordinance: 2020-M, 2020-M-1 and 2020-M-2, Roman Property 
3 Corrective Ordinance: 2021-C, 2021-C-1 and 2021-C-2, Lake Pearl Property 
4 Approval of the Amended and Restated Agreement with the City Attorney
5 One Fight. One Team. PTSD 5k October 30, 2021
6 Kiwanis 7th Annual 5k November 13, 2021

PRESENTATION 
7 Presentation of the City’s Comprehensive Financial Assessment Report (CAFR) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 
8   Mid-Year Budget Amendment  
9   Resolution No. 2021-15, TEFRA Hearing, Lakeview Terrace Bond Restructure 
10 Resolution No. 2021-14 Opioid Litigation 
11 Residential Lease 410 N Kentucky Avenue 
12 SRF Wastewater Pipe Increase 
13 SRF Agreement No. WW350752 Amendment #1

NEW BUSINESS 
14 Reorganization

BOARD/COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
15 Appointment of Police Pension Board Members 

GENERAL DISCUSSION 

REPORTS 
City Attorney  
Mayor 
Council Members 
Staff Members 
Police Activity Report 

Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) 
working days in advance of the meeting date and time at (352)669-3125.  F.S. 286.0105  If a person decides to appeal any decision or 
recommendation made by Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that 
for such purposes, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and 
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Council meeting is and shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen 
to and for the benefit of the Council pursuant to Resolution 2014-43.  The views and beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not 
been previously reviewed or approved by the Council and do not necessarily represent their individual religious beliefs, nor are the views 
or beliefs expressed intended to suggest allegiance to or preference for any particular religion, denomination, faith, creed, or belief by the 
Council or the City.  No person in attendance at this meeting is or shall be required to participate in any invocation and such decision 
whether or not to participate will have no impact on his or her right to actively participate in the public meeting. 

The City of Umatilla is an equal opportunity provider and employer.



1 

CITY OF UMATILLA 
AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  June 30, 2021 MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 

SUBJECT:  City Council Regular Meeting Minutes dated June 15, 2021 

ISSUE: Approval of Minutes 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:  Minutes have been transcribed by Interim City Clerk Gwen Johns, 
and are being presented for approval by the City Council. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  

FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

COUNCIL ACTION:   

Reviewed by City Attorney   □Yes □No √N/A

Reviewed by City Engineer    □Yes □No √N/A



UMATILLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
JUNE 15, 6:00 PM  

Council Chambers, 1 S. Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led and Invocation given by Mayor Adcock. 

The meeting was called to order at 6:03 p.m. 

IN ATTENDANCE:  Mayor Kent Adcock; Vice Mayor Laura Wright; Council Members: 
Katherine Adams, Brian Butler, John Nichols; Police Chief Adam Bolton; City Attorney Kevin 
Stone; City Manager Scott Blankenship; Compliance Officer Misti Lambert 

AGENDA REVIEW  
No changes to the agenda. 

MINUTES REVIEW 
1 Minutes, City Council meeting June 1, 2021 

MOTION by John Nichols to approve the City Council minutes dated June 1, 2021; 
SECOND by Laura Wright; 
Motion APPROVED by unanimous vote. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no public comments.   

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 

2 Resolution 2021-13 Lakeview Terrace Municipal Bond Refinance 

Kevin Stone, City Attorney, read title of Resolution No. 2021-13. 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA, PROVIDING 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING $10,000,000 CITY OF 
UMATILLA, FLORIDA REFUNDING REVENUE BONES (LAKEVIEW 
TERRACE SENIOR LIVING PROJECT), FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
PROVIDING FUNDS TO REFUND CERTAIN OUTSTANDING BONDS; 
APPROVING A LOAN OF SUCH PROCEEDS TO COMMUNITY 
SUPPORTS, INC.; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A BOND TRUST 
INDENTURE, A LOAN AGREEMENT AND CERTAIN OTHER 
DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS; 
AUTHORIZING THE PLACEMENT OF THE BONDS WITH TD BANK, 
N.A.; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS; MAKING
CERTAIN COVENANTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF
THE BONDS; APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS AFTER A
PUBLIC HEARING; PROVIDING CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS IN
CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; A REPEALER CLAUSE; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Grace Dunlap, Bryant Miller Olive, was present to support the request.  Mike Armstrong 
was also present for refinancing of bonds issued in 2012. In July, additional bonds will be 
presented to city Council for restructuring. 

John Nichols asked if he would have a voting conflict due to his residence in Lakeview 
Terrace. Attorney Stone said no. 

MOTION made by John Nichols, authorizing the bond issuance not to exceed 
$10,000,000;  
SECOND made by Laura Wright; 
Motion was APPROVED by a unanimous vote. 

NEW BUSINESS
3 RFP 2021-A Auditing Services  



Mayor Adcock provided some background information on this agenda item.  Staff 
recommendation was made after scoring as cited on the staff report. 
The City was very happy with McDermitt Davis, they are very thorough.  

Mayor Adcock, asked about conflict since he was on the task force.  Attorney Stone advised 
Mayor Adcock would not have a conflict and he asked if compensation was a factor. The 
Auditor appointment is driven by statute. Since compensation was a consideration, the top 
ranked firm should be appointed.  Each firm submitted compensation as part of their 
proposal. 

MOTION was made by Katherine Adams to appoint McDermitt Davis; 
SECOND by Laura Wright; 
Motion was APPROVED by a unanimous vote. 

4 RFQ 2021-B Engineering Services  

Mr. Blankenship turned presentation over to Aaron Mercer, Public Works Director.  There 
were 21 respondents for engineering, survey, architectural services, and all were impressive. 
Responses to the request were reviewed by Mr. Mercer, Vaughan Neilson, Assistant Public 
Works Director and Josh Pixel, Utility Manager.  Performance on previous projects was also 
reviewed prior to the ranking, which is not in any specific order.   

MOTION made by Laura Wright to offer contracts to each firm, GAI, BESH, Mittauer 
and Southeastern Surveying;  
SECOND by Brian Butler; 
Motion was APPROVED by a unanimous vote. 

Attorney Stone advised Public works projects that require these services have to be procured 
in a certain way. They have to be selected on their qualifications. If projects are $4 million, 
the City can continue to use the vendor. City Council is being asked to accept ranking and 
authorize staff to negotiate the contracts since compensation was not considered.  This 
process will allow the City 5 years to use these firms under continuing services contracts. 

4a Authorize task order for the two CRA items 
GAI to moderate $10000  

MOTION made by Katherine Adams to approve GAI to moderate trails initiative 
meetings, not to exceed $10,000; 
SECOND by John Nichols; 
Motion was APPROVED by a unanimous voice vote. 

450 restructure concept $10000 Nichols Adams 

MOTION made by John Nichols to approve design concept for the intersection of 450 
and SR 19; 
SECOND by Katherine Adams; 
Motion was APPROVED by a unanimous vote. 

PRESENTATION 
5 WCA-GFL Sanitation Update provided by Skip Mccall, GFL Environmental 

Mr. McCall provided information on the transition of WCA to GFL Environmental.  
Unfortunately, the industry was greatly impacted by COVID.  The transition to GFL, however, 
has not had a role in any of the challenges experienced with collection. 

GENERAL DISCUSSION 
6 Glendale II Cemetery Survey – For many years Karen Howard has managed the cemetery. 

Staff has attempted to repair issues identified with placement in the cemetery, but has found 
it will be necessary to obtain professional assistance.  While no estimate has been obtained, 
staff is asking for authorization to get intermediate marking for sites in order to 
support immediate sales. The citizens of Umatilla pay for the cemetery. The City does have 
some work to do whenever a burial lot is purchased. The City also incurs maintenance 
expenses for the cemetery.  Staff has been looking at software packages to support the 
management of the cemetery. 

REPORTS 
Finance- Budget Calendar 2021-2022 -Invited council to come review and ask questions 



City Attorney – Opioid – law suits by states and local governments. AG sent proposal for all 
cities and counties to participate in a class settlement in lieu of pursuing our own claim. 
Payments would be used to combat the crisis. Recommends participating, will revisit next 
meeting.  

Mayor 

Council Members 

Staff 

Police Activity Report – Police Chief Adam Bolton 

Mr. Blankenship- League of Cities Conference August if Council wants to go 

Laura Wright- Event with Chamber at Umatilla Baptist is coming up and there is a need for 
servers to help, as well as monetary donations. 

Ms. Wright explained due to personal reasons, she will be resigning from City Council, 
effective July 20, 2021.  A replacement will need to be appointed within thirty (30) days to fill 
the position until election 2022.  

Mr. Nichols recognized Chief Bolton and Code Compliance Officer Lambert for presentation 
on COP 

Mayor Adcock reported the recent Fly in was a success 

Bolton- Catalytic converter thefts. Active investigation, Blood Drive June 

Lanoue- Increased number of fires. Fire season storm season prep. 

Mercer- Pool first week in July. Parking lot finishing up, resurfacing projects 

Senate Bill 60 – Anonymous complaint. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business for discussion, meeting adjourned at 7:03 p.m. 

Kent Adcock, MAYOR 

Gwen Johns, MMC 
City Clerk 



1 

CITY OF UMATILLA 
AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  June 30, 2021  MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Corrective Ordinances for Lake Pearl  Parcels 

ISSUE: Approval of Corrected Ordinances 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:  Corrective ordinances for Lake Pearl properties have been included 
in the agenda packet with strikethroughs and corrections.  Parcels which were annexed earlier 
this year had incorrect legal descriptions.  The errors were scrivener in nature, but because it 
was noted the legal descriptions were not correct, contact was made by Kevin Stone, City 
Attorney, with Lake County Attorney to find out if there were any objections to these 
corrections being made.  No objections are anticipated. 

The City Attorney has reviewed and determined that although the legal descriptions in the 
recorded ordinances were incorrect, the notices, advertised maps, and advertised ordinance 
titles were correct and the correct information was provided to the council about the location 
and nature of the properties during the public hearings. 

Upon approval, the ordinances will be rerecorded with the corrections made an d a legend 
added explaining the discrepancy in the legal description. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  

FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

COUNCIL ACTION:   

Reviewed by City Attorney   □Yes □No √N/A

Reviewed by City Engineer    □Yes □No √N/A



Ordinance 2021           C & C Realty_ Annexation (Corrective) Page 1 

CORRECTIVE ORDINANCE 
This Ordinance corrects errors in the legal description in Ordinance 2020-M 

Instrument # 2020118461 OR BK 5567 PG 2384, Lake County, Florida 

ORDINANCE 2020- M 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY  OF UMATILLA, COUNTY OF LAKE, STATE OF FLORIDA, IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE PROCEDURE SET FORTH IN SECTION 171.044 AND SECTION 171.203, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
INCLUDE WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS APPROXIMATELY  1.76 ± ACRES OF LAND GENERALLY LOCATED EAST 
OF SR 19 AND SOUTH OF MAXWELL ROAD;  DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO PROVIDE CERTIFIED 
COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE AFTER APPROVAL TO THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT, THE LAKE 
COUNTY MANAGER AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Umatilla entered into an Interlocal Service Boundary Agreement (ISBA) with Lake 
County, Florida dated May 3, 2011 and amended on February 21, 2013, (the “ISBA”) pursuant to Chapter 
171, Florida Statutes, and the ISBA permits the City to annex certain property that is not contiguous to 
the City limits; and 

WHEREAS, a petition has been submitted for annexation of approximately 1.76 acres of land generally 
located east of SR 19 and south of Maxwell Road (the “Property”) by C & C Realty Investment Group, LLC, 
Brent Howells, Managing Member as Owner;  

WHEREAS, the petition bears the signature of all applicable parties; and  

WHEREAS, the required notice of the proposed annexation has been properly published; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is identified in the ISBA as property that may be annexed by the City of Umatilla, 
although it is not contiguous to the City limits.     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Florida, as follows: 

Section 1. 
The following described property consisting of approximately 1.76 acres of land generally located east of 
SR 19 and south of Maxwell Road, is hereby incorporated into and made part of the City of Umatilla 
Florida.  The property is more particularly described as follows:   

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:    COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ NORTHEAST ¼ 
OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND RUN NORTH 
89°55’24” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼, 43.25 FEET TO 
THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE ABANDONED S.C.L RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 30°02’35” EAST AND A 
CHORD DISTANCE OF 300.0 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID RIGHT 
OF WAY A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 32°49’25” EAST AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 2332.80 FEET; 
THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY RUN NORTH 34°14’35” EAST 221.37 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
57°01’11” EAST 189.84 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE WATERS OF LAKE PEARL, THENCE SOUTHERLY 
ALONG AND WITH SAID WATERS OF LAKE PEARL TO A POINT THAT IS SOUTH 59°57’25” EAST OF THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN NORTH 59°57’25” WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Alternate Key # 3911076 

Section 2. The City Clerk shall forward a certified copy of this Ordinance to the Clerk of the 
Circuit Court, the County Manager of Lake County, Florida, and the Secretary of State of Florida 
within seven (7) days after its passage on second and final reading.   

Section 3. If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction 
to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this 
Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 



Ordinance 2021           C & C Realty_ Annexation (Corrective) Page 2 

Section 4. The property annexed in this Ordinance is subject to the Land Use Plan of the Lake 
County Comprehensive Plan and county zoning regulations until the City adopts the Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment to include the property annexed in the City Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 5. Utilities.   The property is located within the City’s Chapter 180, Florida Statutes, Utility 
District.  The owner hereby agrees that the City shall be the sole provider of water and wastewater 
services to the property subject to this Ordinance when such services become available subject to the 
rules and regulations established by State and Federal regulatory agencies, and applicable City 
ordinances, policies, and procedures.  For the purposes of this Section 5, ‘available’ shall mean when the 
City’s potable water system comes within 300’ of the private water system or any of the central lines of 
such private system and when the City’s wastewater system comes within 1,000’ of the private 
treatment system or any central lines of such private system.  Distances shall be measured as a curb line 
distance within the right of way or the centerline distance within an easement.  The owner further 
agrees that when the City provides notice that such utilities are available; the owner shall connect to the 
applicable system within 12 months of the date of the City’s written notice.   

Section 6.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage by the City Council of the 
City of Umatilla. 

PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Lake County, 
Florida, this ______ day of ________, 2021. 

______________________________________ 
Kent Adcock, Mayor 
City of Umatilla, Florida   

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 

_____________________________ ________________________________ 
Karen H. Howard, CMC  Kevin Stone  
City Clerk         City Attorney  

Passed First Reading ___________ 
Passed Second Reading___________ 

(SEAL) 



1 Ordinance 2021 – C & C Realty_ LU (Corrective) 

CORRECTIVE ORDINANCE 
This Ordinance corrects errors in the legal description in Ordinance 2020-M-1 

Instrument # 2020118462 OR BK 5567 PG 2387, Lake County, Florida 

ORDINANCE 2020-M-1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, COUNTY OF LAKE, STATE OF FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF FLORIDA STATUTE 163.3187(1); AMENDING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF 1.76 ± 
ACRES OF LAND DESIGNATED LAKE COUNTY URBAN LOW TO RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY IN THE CITY 
OF UMATILLA FOR THE HEREAFTER DESCRIBED PROPERTY OWNED BY C & C REALTY INVESTMENT 
GROUP, LLC,  LOCATED EAST OF US 19 AND SOUTH OF MAXWELL ROAD ; DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO TRANSMIT THE AMENDMENT TO THE APPROPRIATE GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 163, FLORIDA STATUTES; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND SAID 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, a petition has been received from C & C Realty Investment Group, LLC, Brent Howells, 
Managing Member as owner, requesting that real property within the city limits of the City of Umatilla 
be assigned a land use designation from Lake County Urban Low to City Residential Low Density under 
the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Umatilla; 

WHEREAS, the amendment would facilitate residential development and is in compliance with 
the policies of the City’s comprehensive plan; and 

WHEREAS, the required notice of the proposed small scale comprehensive plan amendment has 
been properly published as required by Chapter 163, Florida Statutes; and 

 WHEREAS, the Local Planning Agency for the City of Umatilla have  reviewed the proposed 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan and have made recommendations to the City Council of the City 
of Umatilla.   

 WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed said petition, the recommendations of the Land Planning 
Agency, staff report and any comments, favorable or unfavorable, from the public and surrounding 
property owners at a public hearing duly advertised; 

WHEREAS, the City has held such public hearings and the records of the City provide that the 
owners of the land affected have been notified as required by law; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: Purpose and Intent. 
That the land use classification of the following described property, being situated in the City of Umatilla, 
Florida, shall hereafter be designated from Lake County Urban Low to Residential Low Density as 
depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as defined in the Umatilla Comprehensive Plan. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ NORTHEAST ¼ 
OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND RUN NORTH 
89°55’24” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼, 43.25 FEET TO 
THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE ABANDONED S.C.L RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 30°02’35” EAST AND A 
CHORD DISTANCE OF 300.0 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID RIGHT 
OF WAY A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 32°49’25” EAST AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 2332.80 FEET; 
THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY RUN NORTH 34°14’35” EAST 221.37 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
57°01’11” EAST 189.84 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE WATERS OF LAKE PEARL, THENCE SOUTHERLY 
ALONG AND WITH SAID WATERS OF LAKE PEARL TO A POINT THAT IS SOUTH 59°57’25” EAST OF THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN NORTH 59°57’25” WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Alternate Key # 3911076 

A. That a copy of said Land Use Plan Amendment is filed in the office of the City Manager of
the City of Umatilla as a matter of permanent record of the City, and that matters and
contents therein are made a part of this ordinance by reference as fully and completely



2 Ordinance 2021 – C & C Realty_ LU (Corrective) 

as if set forth herein, and such copy shall remain on file in said office available for public 
inspection. 

B. That the City Manager, after passage of this Ordinance, is hereby directed to indicate the
changes adopted in this Ordinance and to reflect the same on the Comprehensive Land
Use Plan Map of the City of Umatilla.

Section 2: Severability.
If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void,
unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall
remain in full force and effect.

Section 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are herby repealed. 

Section 4: Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall become effective 31 days after its adoption by the City Council.  If this 
Ordinance is challenged within 30 days after its adoption, it may not become effective until the 
state land planning agency or Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order 
determining that this Ordinance is in compliance. 

PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Lake County, 
Florida, this ______ day of ________, 2021. 

______________________________________ 
Kent Adcock, Mayor 
City of Umatilla, Florida   

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 

_____________________________ ________________________________ 
Karen H. Howard, CMC  Kevin Stone  
City Clerk           City Attorney  

Passed First Reading ___________ 
Passed Second Reading___________ 

(SEAL) 



3 Ordinance 2021 – C & C Realty_ LU (Corrective) 

EXHIBIT “A” 



1 Ordinance 2021 – C & C Realty Rezoning (Corrective) 

CORRECTIVE ORDINANCE 
This Ordinance corrects errors in the legal description in Ordinance 2020-M-2 

Instrument # 2020118463 OR BK 5567 PG 2390, Lake County, Florida 

ORDINANCE 2020-M-2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, COUNTY OF LAKE, STATE OF FLORIDA, RECLASSIFYING 1.76 
± ACRES OF LAND ZONED LAKE COUNTY RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM DENSITY (R-3) TO THE DESIGNATION 
OF LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-3) IN THE CITY OF UMATILLA FOR THE HEREAFTER DESCRIBED 
PROPERTY OWNED BY C & C REALTY INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC, LOCATED EAST OF SR 19 AND SOUTH 
OF MAXWELL ROAD;  DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO PROVIDE CERTIFIED COPIES OF THIS 
ORDINANCE AFTER APPROVAL TO THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT, THE LAKE COUNTY MANAGER 
AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, a petition has been submitted by C & C Realty Investment Group, LLC, Brent Howells, 
Managing Member as Owner, to rezone approximately 1.76 acres of land from Lake County Medium 
Residential Density (R-3) to City of Umatilla Low Density Residential (R-3);   

WHEREAS, the Petition bears the signature of all required parties; and 

WHEREAS, the required notice of the proposed rezoning has been properly published; 

 WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed said petition, the recommendations of staff report and any 
comments, favorable or unfavorable, from the public and surrounding property owners at a public 
hearing duly advertised; 

WHEREAS, upon review, certain terms pertaining to the development of the above described 
property have been duly approved, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Florida, as 
follows: 

Section 1: Purpose and Intent. 
That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the City of Umatilla, 
Florida, shall hereafter be designated as Low Density Residential (R-3) as defined in the Umatilla Land 
Development Regulations and as depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 
herein by reference. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ NORTHEAST ¼ 
OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND RUN NORTH 
89°55’24” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼, 43.25 FEET TO 
THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE ABANDONED S.C.L RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 30°02’35” EAST AND A 
CHORD DISTANCE OF 300.0 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID RIGHT 
OF WAY A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 32°49’25” EAST AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 2332.80 FEET; 
THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY RUN NORTH 34°14’35” EAST 221.37 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
57°01’11” EAST 189.84 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE WATERS OF LAKE PEARL, THENCE SOUTHERLY 
ALONG AND WITH SAID WATERS OF LAKE PEARL TO A POINT THAT IS SOUTH 59°57’25” EAST OF THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN NORTH 59°57’25” WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Alternate Key # 3911076 

Section 2: Zoning Classification. 
That the property shall be designated as R-3, Low Density Residential, in accordance with Chapter 6, 
Section 2(b) of the Land Development Regulations of the City of Umatilla, Florida. 

Section 3:  The City Manager, or designee, is hereby directed to amend, alter, and implement the 
official zoning map of the City of Umatilla, Florida, to include said designation consistent with this 
Ordinance.  

Section 4: Severability. 



2 Ordinance 2021 – C & C Realty Rezoning (Corrective) 

If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

Section 5: Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage by the City Council of the City of 
Umatilla. 

PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Lake County, 
Florida, this ______ day of ________, 2021. 

______________________________________ 
Eric Olson, Mayor 
City of Umatilla, Florida   

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 

_____________________________ ________________________________ 
Karen H. Howard, CMC  Kevin Stone   
City Clerk          City Attorney 

Passed First Reading ___________ 
Passed Second Reading___________ 

(SEAL) 

EXHIBIT “A” 



1 

CITY OF UMATILLA 
AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  June 30, 2021  MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Corrective Ordinances for Roman Parcels 

ISSUE: Approval of Corrected Ordinances 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:  Corrective ordinances for Roman properties have been included in 
the agenda packet with strikethroughs and corrections.  Parcels which were annexed earlier 
this year had incorrect legal descriptions.  The errors were scrivener in nature, but because it 
was noted the legal descriptions were not correct, contact was made by Kevin Stone, City 
Attorney, with Lake County Attorney to find out if there were any objections to these 
corrections being made.  No objections are anticipated. 

The City Attorney has reviewed and determined that although the legal descriptions in the 
recorded ordinances were incorrect, the notices, advertised maps, and advertised ordinance 
titles were correct and the correct information was provided to the council about the location 
and nature of the properties during the public hearings. 

Upon approval, the ordinances will be rerecorded with the corrections made an d a legend 
added explaining the discrepancy in the legal description. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  

FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

COUNCIL ACTION:   

Reviewed by City Attorney   □Yes □No √N/A

Reviewed by City Engineer    □Yes □No √N/A



CORRECTIVE ORDINANCE 
This Ordinance corrects errors in the legal description in Ordinance 2021-C, 

Instrument # 2021009775 OR BK 5626 PG 1144, Lake County, Florida  
ORDINANCE 2021- C 1 

2 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 3 
BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY  OF UMATILLA, COUNTY OF LAKE, STATE OF FLORIDA, IN ACCORDANCE 4 
WITH THE PROCEDURE SET FORTH IN SECTION 171.044, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO INCLUDE WITHIN THE 5 
CITY LIMITS APPROXIMATELY  2.99 ± ACRES OF LAND GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF SR 19 AND SOUTH 6 
OF PALM STREET;  DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO PROVIDE CERTIFIED COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE 7 
AFTER APPROVAL TO THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT, THE LAKE COUNTY MANAGER AND THE 8 
SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 9 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 10 

11 
 WHEREAS, a petition has been submitted for annexation of approximately 2.99 acres of land generally 12 
located west of SR 19 and south of Palm Street (the “Property”) by Alberto C. Roman as Owner; 13 

14 
WHEREAS, the petition bears the signature of all applicable parties; and 15 

16 
WHEREAS, the required notice of the proposed annexation has been properly published; and 17 

18 
WHEREAS, the Property is contiguous to the City limits and may be annexed by the City of Umatilla.  19 

20 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Florida, as follows: 21 

22 
Section 1. 23 
The following described property consisting of approximately 2.99 acres of land generally located west of 24 
SR 19 and south of Palm Street, is hereby incorporated into and made part of the City of Umatilla Florida.  25 
The property is more particularly described as follows: 26 

27 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:      BEGIN AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH LINE 28 
OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, 29 
RANGE 27 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-30 
WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 19, SAID POINT OF BEING A CONCRETE 31 
MONUMENT AT THE INTERSECTION BY THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 32 
PALM STREET AND THE AFORESAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 33 
STATE ROAD NUMBER 19 AS SHOWN ON THE PLOT OF SILVER BEACH HEIGHTS, 34 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, AT PAGE SA, PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, 35 
FLORIDA, RUN THENCE NORTH 89° 59' 30" WEST ALONG THE SAID NORTH LINE OF 36 
THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF SECTION 5 A DISTANCE OF 180.00 37 
FEET, THENCE SOUTH 23° 00' 59" EAST A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 38 
55° 51' 15" EAST A DISTANCE OF 93.00 FEET TO A POINT OF THE AFORESAID 39 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 19, THENCE NORTH 32°58' 40 
40" EAST, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE DISTANCE OF 139.00 FEET TO THE 41 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 42 

43 
Commence at a 1” pipe at the intersection of the Northwesterly line of the right of way of State Road No. 44 
19 with the South line of the right of way of Palm Street in Section 6, Township 18 South, Range 27 East, 45 
Lake County, Florida, said intersection being shown on the plat of Silver Beach Heights recorded in Plat 46 
Book 14, page 25, Public Records of Lake County, Florida; Thence run North 89°59’30” West, along the 47 



Ordinance 2021           Roman_ Annexation (Corrective) Page 2 

South right of way line of Palm Street, according to said plat, 180.00 feet to the Point of Beginning; 48 
Thence continue North 89°59’30” West, along said South right of way line, 137.83 feet; Thence South 49 
33°11’26” West, 173.25 feet; Thence North 89°59’30” West, 292.46 feet; Thence South 00°00’30” West, 50 
17.27 feet; Thence South 56°06’30” East, 501.12 feet to a 4” round concrete monument #RLS 1916 being 51 
designated “Point A”; Thence return to the Point of Beginning and run South 23°00’59” East, 70.00 feet; 52 
Thence South 55°51’15” East, 93.00 feet to the Northwesterly line of the right of way of State Road No. 53 
19; Thence South 33°12’29” West, 387.34 feet to “Point A” and terminus of this description. 54 

55 
56 

Alternate Key # 11014177 and 1097282 57 
58 

Section 2. The City Clerk shall forward a certified copy of this Ordinance to the Clerk of the 59 
Circuit Court, the County Manager of Lake County, Florida, and the Secretary of State of Florida 60 
within seven (7) days after its passage on second and final reading.  61 

62 
Section 3. If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 63 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of 64 
this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 65 

66 
Section 4. The property annexed in this Ordinance is subject to the Land Use Plan of the Lake 67 
County Comprehensive Plan and county zoning regulations until the City adopts the Comprehensive Plan 68 
Amendment to include the property annexed in the City Comprehensive Plan. 69 

70 
Section 5. Utilities.   The property is located within the City’s Chapter 180, Florida Statutes, Utility 71 
District.  The owner hereby agrees that the City shall be the sole provider of water and wastewater 72 
services to the property subject to this Ordinance when such services become available subject to the 73 
rules and regulations established by State and Federal regulatory agencies, and applicable City 74 
ordinances, policies, and procedures.  For the purposes of this Section 5, ‘available’ shall mean when the 75 
City’s potable water system comes within 300’ of the private water system or any of the central lines of 76 
such private system and when the City’s wastewater system comes within 1,000’ of the private 77 
treatment system or any central lines of such private system.  Distances shall be measured as a curb line 78 
distance within the right of way or the centerline distance within an easement.  The owner further 79 
agrees that when the City provides notice that such utilities are available; the owner shall connect to the 80 
applicable system within 12 months of the date of the City’s written notice. 81 

82 
Section 6.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage by the City Council of 83 
the City of Umatilla. 84 

85 
86 

PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Lake County, 87 
Florida, this ______ day of ________, 2021. 88 

89 
90 

______________________________________ 91 
Kent Adcock, Mayor 92 
City of Umatilla, Florida  93 

94 
95 



Ordinance 2021           Roman_ Annexation (Corrective) Page 3 

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 96 
97 
98 

_____________________________ ________________________________ 99 
Karen H. Howard, MMC  Kevin Stone  100 
City Clerk City Attorney  101 

102 
103 

Passed First Reading ___________ 104 
Passed Second Reading___________ 105 

(SEAL) 106 
107 
108 



1 Ordinance 2021 – Roman_ LU (Corrective) 

CORRECTIVE ORDINANCE 
This Ordinance corrects errors in the legal description in Ordinance 2021-C 

Instrument # 2021009776 OR BK 5626 PG 1147, Lake County, Florida 

ORDINANCE 2021-C-1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, COUNTY OF LAKE, STATE OF FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF FLORIDA STATUTE 163.3187(1)(c); AMENDING THE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF 2.99 ± 
ACRES OF LAND DESIGNATED LAKE COUNTY URBAN LOW TO SINGLE FAMILY MEDIUM DENSITY IN THE 
CITY OF UMATILLA FOR THE HEREAFTER DESCRIBED PROPERTY OWNED BY ALBERTO C. ROMAN 
LOCATED WEST OF SR 19 AND SOUTH OF PALM STREET ; DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO TRANSMIT 
THE AMENDMENT TO THE APPROPRIATE GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 163, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND SAID COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, a petition has been received from Alberto C. Roman as owner, requesting that real 
property within the city limits of the City of Umatilla be assigned a land use designation from Lake 
County Urban Low Density to City Residential Single Family Medium Density under the Comprehensive 
Plan for the City of Umatilla; 

WHEREAS, the amendment would facilitate commercial development and is in compliance with 
the policies of the City’s comprehensive plan; and 

WHEREAS, the required notice of the proposed small scale comprehensive plan amendment has 
been properly published as required by Chapter 163, Florida Statutes; and 

 WHEREAS, the Local Planning Agency for the City of Umatilla have  reviewed the proposed 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan and have made recommendations to the City Council of the City 
of Umatilla.   

 WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed said petition, the recommendations of the Land Planning 
Agency, staff report and any comments, favorable or unfavorable, from the public and surrounding 
property owners at a public hearing duly advertised; 

WHEREAS, the City has held such public hearings and the records of the City provide that the 
owners of the land affected have been notified as required by law; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: Purpose and Intent. 
That the land use classification of the following described property, being situated in the City of Umatilla, 
Florida, shall hereafter be designated from Lake County Urban Low Density to Single Family Medium 
Density as depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as defined in the Umatilla 
Comprehensive Plan. 



2 Ordinance 2021 – Roman_ LU (Corrective) 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:     BEGIN AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH LINE 
OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, 
RANGE 27 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 19, SAID POINT OF BEING A CONCRETE 
MONUMENT AT THE INTERSECTION BY THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
PALM STREET AND THE AFORESAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
STATE ROAD NUMBER 19 AS SHOWN ON THE PLOT OF SILVER BEACH HEIGHTS, 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, AT PAGE SA, PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, RUN THENCE NORTH 89° 59' 30" WEST ALONG THE SAID NORTH LINE OF 
THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF SECTION 5 A DISTANCE OF 180.00 
FEET, THENCE SOUTH 23° 00' 59" EAST A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 
55° 51' 15" EAST A DISTANCE OF 93.00 FEET TO A POINT OF THE AFORESAID 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 19, THENCE NORTH 32°58' 
40" EAST, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE DISTANCE OF 139.00 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING.  

COMMENCE AT A 1” PIPE AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE 
OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF STATE ROAD NO. 19 WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
RIGHT OF WAY OF PALM STREET IN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 27 
EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, SAID INTERSECTION BEING SHOWN ON THE PLAT 
OF SILVER BEACH HEIGHTS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 14, PAGE 25, PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°59’30” WEST, 
ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF PALM STREET, ACCORDING TO SAID 
PLAT, 180.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 
89°59’30” WEST, ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 137.83 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 33°11’26” WEST, 173.25 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°59’30” WEST, 292.46 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 00°00’30” WEST, 17.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 56°06’30” EAST, 501.12 
FEET TO A 4” ROUND CONCRETE MONUMENT #RLS 1916 BEING DESIGNATED 
“POINT A”; THENCE RETURN TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND RUN SOUTH 
23°00’59” EAST, 70.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 55°51’15” EAST, 93.00 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF STATE ROAD NO. 19; THENCE 
SOUTH 33°12’29” WEST, 387.34 FEET TO “POINT A” AND TERMINUS OF THIS 
DESCRIPTION. 

Alternate Key # 1101417 and 1097282 

A. That a copy of said Land Use Plan Amendment is filed in the office of the City Manager of
the City of Umatilla as a matter of permanent record of the City, and that matters and
contents therein are made a part of this ordinance by reference as fully and completely
as if set forth herein, and such copy shall remain on file in said office available for public
inspection.

B. That the City Manager, after passage of this Ordinance, is hereby directed to indicate the
changes adopted in this Ordinance and to reflect the same on the Comprehensive Land
Use Plan Map of the City of Umatilla.

Section 2: Severability.



3 Ordinance 2021 – Roman_ LU (Corrective) 

If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

Section 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are herby repealed. 

Section 4: Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall become effective 31 days after its adoption by the City Council.  If this Ordinance is 
challenged within 30 days after its adoption, it may not become effective until the state land planning 
agency or Administrative Commission, respectively, issues a final order determining that this Ordinance 
is in compliance. 

PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Lake County, 
Florida, this ______ day of ________, 2021. 

______________________________________ 
Kent Adcock, Mayor 
City of Umatilla, Florida   

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 

_____________________________ ________________________________ 
Karen H. Howard, MMC  Kevin Stone  
City Clerk           City Attorney  

Passed First Reading ___________ 
Passed Second Reading___________ 

(SEAL) 



4 Ordinance 2021 – Roman_ LU (Corrective) 

EXHIBIT “A” 



1 Ordinance 2021 – Roman Rezoning (Corrective) 

CORRECTIVE ORDINANCE 
This Ordinance corrects errors in the legal description in Ordinance 2021-C-2 

Instrument # 2021009777 OR BK 5626 PG 1150, Lake County, Florida 1 
ORDINANCE 2021-C-2 2 

3 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, COUNTY OF LAKE, STATE OF FLORIDA, RECLASSIFYING 2.99 4 
± ACRES OF LAND ZONED LAKE COUNTY  SINGLE FAMILY MEDIUM RESIDENTIAL (R-3) AND GENERAL 5 
COMMERCIAL (C-2) TO THE DESIGNATION OF CITY URBAN  RESIDENTIAL  DISTRICT (UR-5)   FOR THE 6 
HEREAFTER DESCRIBED PROPERTY OWNED BY ALBERTO C. ROMAN, LOCATED WEST OF SR 19 AND 7 
SOUTH OF PALM STREET;  DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO PROVIDE CERTIFIED COPIES OF THIS 8 
ORDINANCE AFTER APPROVAL TO THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT, THE LAKE COUNTY MANAGER 9 
AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 10 

11 
WHEREAS, a petition has been submitted by Alberto C. Roman as Owner, to rezone 12 

approximately 2.99 acres of land from Lake County Single Family Medium Residential (R3) and General 13 
Commercial (C-2) to City Urban Residential District (UR-5);  14 

15 
WHEREAS, the Petition bears the signature of all required parties; and 16 

17 
WHEREAS, the required notice of the proposed rezoning has been properly published; 18 

19 
WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed said petition, the recommendations of staff report and any 20 

comments, favorable or unfavorable, from the public and surrounding property owners at a public 21 
hearing duly advertised; 22 

23 
WHEREAS, upon review, certain terms pertaining to the development of the above described 24 

property have been duly approved, and 25 
26 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Florida, as 27 
follows: 28 

29 
Section 1: Purpose and Intent. 30 
That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the City of Umatilla, 31 
Florida, shall hereafter be designated as Urban Residential District (UR-5) as defined in the Umatilla Land 32 
Development Regulations and as depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 33 
herein by reference. 34 

35 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:     BEGIN AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH LINE 36 
OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, 37 
RANGE 27 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-38 
WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 19, SAID POINT OF BEING A CONCRETE 39 
MONUMENT AT THE INTERSECTION BY THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 40 
PALM STREET AND THE AFORESAID NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 41 
STATE ROAD NUMBER 19 AS SHOWN ON THE PLOT OF SILVER BEACH HEIGHTS, 42 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, AT PAGE SA, PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, 43 
FLORIDA, RUN THENCE NORTH 89° 59' 30" WEST ALONG THE SAID NORTH LINE OF 44 
THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF THE SOUTHWEST¼ OF SECTION 5 A DISTANCE OF 180.00 45 
FEET, THENCE SOUTH 23° 00' 59" EAST A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 46 



2 Ordinance 2021 – Roman Rezoning (Corrective) 

55° 51' 15" EAST A DISTANCE OF 93.00 FEET TO A POINT OF THE AFORESAID 47 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 19, THENCE NORTH 32°58' 48 
40" EAST, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE DISTANCE OF 139.00 FEET TO THE 49 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 50 

51 
COMMENCE AT A 1” PIPE AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE 52 
OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF STATE ROAD NO. 19 WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 53 
RIGHT OF WAY OF PALM STREET IN SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 27 54 
EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, SAID INTERSECTION BEING SHOWN ON THE PLAT 55 
OF SILVER BEACH HEIGHTS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 14, PAGE 25, PUBLIC 56 
RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°59’30” WEST, 57 
ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF PALM STREET, ACCORDING TO SAID 58 
PLAT, 180.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 59 
89°59’30” WEST, ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 137.83 FEET; THENCE 60 
SOUTH 33°11’26” WEST, 173.25 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°59’30” WEST, 292.46 FEET; 61 
THENCE SOUTH 00°00’30” WEST, 17.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 56°06’30” EAST, 501.12 62 
FEET TO A 4” ROUND CONCRETE MONUMENT #RLS 1916 BEING DESIGNATED 63 
“POINT A”; THENCE RETURN TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND RUN SOUTH 64 
23°00’59” EAST, 70.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 55°51’15” EAST, 93.00 FEET TO THE 65 
NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF STATE ROAD NO. 19; THENCE 66 
SOUTH 33°12’29” WEST, 387.34 FEET TO “POINT A” AND TERMINUS OF THIS 67 
DESCRIPTION. 68 

69 
Alternate Key # 1101417 and 1097282 70 

71 
Section 2: Zoning Classification. 72 
That the property shall be designated as UR-5, Urban Residential District, in accordance with Chapter 6, 73 
Section 2(c) of the Land Development Regulations of the City of Umatilla, Florida. 74 

75 
Section 3:  The City Manager, or designee, is hereby directed to amend, alter, and implement the 76 
official zoning map of the City of Umatilla, Florida, to include said designation consistent with this 77 
Ordinance. 78 

79 
Section 4: Severability. 80 
If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, 81 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall 82 
remain in full force and effect. 83 

84 
Section 5: Effective Date. 85 
This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage by the City Council of the City of 86 
Umatilla. 87 

88 
PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Lake County, 89 
Florida, this ______ day of ________, 2021. 90 

91 
92 

______________________________________ 93 



3 Ordinance 2021 – Roman Rezoning (Corrective) 

Kent Adcock, Mayor 94 
City of Umatilla, Florida  95 

96 
97 

ATTEST:  Approved as to Form: 98 
99 

100 
_____________________________ ________________________________ 101 
Karen H. Howard, MMC  Kevin Stone   102 
City Clerk City Attorney 103 

104 
105 

Passed First Reading ___________ 106 
Passed Second Reading___________ 107 

(SEAL) 108 
109 
110 
111 
112 
113 
114 
115 
116 
117 
118 
119 
120 
121 
122 
123 
124 
125 
126 
127 
128 
129 
130 
131 
132 
133 
134 
135 
136 
137 
138 
139 
140 
141 



4 Ordinance 2021 – Roman Rezoning (Corrective) 

142 
143 

EXHIBIT “A” 144 
145 
146 
147 
148 
149 
150 



1 

CITY OF UMATILLA 
AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

DATE: July 1, 2021     MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Amended and Restated Agreement between the City of Umatilla and City Attorney 

ISSUE: Updated Agreement 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: Stone & Gerkin, P.A. has been serving the City of Umatilla since 
December 2010.  Stone & Gerkin, P.A., would like to continue to provided legal services to the 
City of Umatilla.  Certain updates and modifications to the existing  agreement are attached 
hereto in the form of a newly written agreement. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  

FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

COUNCIL ACTION:   

Reviewed by City Attorney   □Yes □No √N/A

Reviewed by City Engineer    □Yes □No √N/A









1  
 

 
CITY OF UMATILLA 

AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 
 

 
DATE:  June 30, 2021     MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  One Team One Fight 4 PTSD 5K  
 
ISSUE: Event Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY:  Keith Totten requests approval for the One Team One Fight 4 PTSD 
5k event on October 30, 2021 with the alternate date of November 6, 2021. This event has been 
held in the City of Eustis in years past. Mr. Totten is requesting use of the certified Umatilla 5K 
course for his 2021 event for a change of scenery, more broad spread awareness, and greater 
community involvement.  
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION:   
 
Reviewed by City Attorney    □Yes  □No  √N/A 
 
Reviewed by City Engineer     □Yes  □No  √N/A 



1  
 

 
CITY OF UMATILLA 

AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 
 

 
DATE:  June 30, 2021     MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  7th Annual Umatilla Kiwanis 5k for the Kids  
 
ISSUE: Event Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY:  Deborah Joswig of Kiwanis requests approval for the 7th Annual 
Umatilla Kiwanis 5K for the Kids event on November 13, 2021 with the alternate date of 
November 20, 2021. The event has been a great success in the past, and has minimal impact 
on traffic flow. 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION:   
 
Reviewed by City Attorney    □Yes  □No  √N/A 
 
Reviewed by City Engineer     □Yes  □No  √N/A 



1 07.06.2021   Mid-Year Budget Amendment 

 

 
 

CITY OF UMATILLA 
AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE: June 22, 2021 MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021  
 
SUBJECT: Mid-Year Budget Amendment 
 
ISSUE: Resolution 2021-16 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY:  During the budget process, beginning fund balances are estimated based 
on the best information available at the time. After completion of the audit, the City updates the 
beginning balances by Fund to the actual prior year ending balance. 
 
The City also receives various grants and other revenue sources which change the total of the budget. 
These grants and their associated expenditures need to be incorporated into the budget and approved 
by City Council. This amendment updates beginning balances, grants and corrects other minor budget 
items as necessary.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:   N/A  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION:   
 
 
Reviewed by City Attorney    □Yes  □No  √N/A 
 
Reviewed by City Engineer     □Yes  □No  √N/A 



Resolution 2021-16 FY 2020-2021 Budget Amendment 

RESOLUTION 2021 - 16 1 
2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 3 
AMENDING RESOLUTION 2020-22 ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 22, 2020 TO PROVIDE 4 
FOR CHANGES IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 BUDGET; PROVIDING FOR AN 5 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 6 

7 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Umatilla of Lake County, Florida, found and 8 

determined that budget amendments are necessary for the Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 9 
10 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Umatilla, 11 
Lake County, Florida, that: 12 

13 
1. The Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget is hereby amended by the Umatilla City14 

Council as illustrated in Exhibit A attached hereto.15 
16 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to maintain and amend the17 
budget so as to reflect the anticipated revenue and the appropriation of, and the18 
expenditure of, all funds committed to, or received by the city subsequent to19 
September 30, 2020 and prior to October 1, 2021, in accordance with direction of20 
the City Council as to the appropriation and expenditure of such funds as and when21 
received.22 

23 
3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.24 

25 
DULY ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Umatilla, Lake County, Florida.   26 

27 
28 
29 

_________________________ 30 
Kent Adcock 31 
Mayor 32 

33 
34 

ATTEST: Approved as to Form: 35 
STONE & GERKEN, PA 36 

37 
38 
39 

___________________________ _________________________________ 40 
Gwen Johns, MMC Kevin Stone 41 
City Clerk City Attorney 42 



SPECIAL CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE

FUND FUNDS FUND FUNDS TOTAL

CASH BALANCES BROUGHT FORWARD $1,101,027 $476,900 $755,663 $23,896,253 $26,229,843

ESTIMATED REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes - Millage 7.1089 920,128           299,235        -                 -                   1,219,363         
Sales and Use Taxes 72,058 -                 317,451         -                   389,509            
Franchise Fees 280,000 -                 -                 -                   280,000            
Utility Service Taxes 372,000 -                 -                 -                   372,000            
Communications Services Tax 112,830 -                 -                 -                   112,830            
Licenses and Permits 126,500 -                 -                 -                   126,500            
Intergovernmental 430,574 200,000        -                 7,792,811       8,423,385         
Charges for Services 22,000 377,854        -                 2,452,850       2,852,704         
Fines and Forfeitures 20,300 500                -                 -                   20,800              
Miscellaneous 41,500             6,250             100                3,800               51,650              
Other Financing Sources 718,379 -                 -                 -                   718,379            

3,116,269 883,839 317,551 10,249,461 14,567,120
Total Estimated Revenues and
Cash Balances Brought Forward 4,217,296       1,360,739     $1,073,214 $34,145,714 40,796,963      

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES:
General Government 960,761           -                 72,246           -                   1,033,007
Public Safety 1,083,510 401,554        85,510           -                   1,570,574
Physical Environment 50,290 -                 -                 8,389,762       8,440,052
Transportation 545,130 -                 -                 1,710,009       2,255,139
Culture & Recreation 597,275 -                 413,352         -                   1,010,627
Economic Environment -                   740,725        -                 -                   740,725
Debt Service -                   -                 65,357           20,654             86,011
Other Uses 2,445               -                 -                 600,000           602,445

Total Expenditures / Expenses 3,239,411 1,142,279 636,465 10,720,425 15,738,580

Reserves 977,885 218,460 436,749 23,425,289 25,058,383

Total Appropriated Expenditures/
Expenses and Reserves $4,217,296 $1,360,739 $1,073,214 $34,145,714 $40,796,963

BUDGET SUMMARY
CITY OF UMATILLA - FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

AMENDED



1  
 

 
CITY OF UMATILLA 

AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 
 

 
DATE:  July 2, 2021     MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2021-15, TEFRA Hearing, Lakeview Terrace Bond Restructure   
 
ISSUE: TEFRA Hearing  
 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY:   This item is for a TEFRA hearing on the Lakeview Terrace bond 
restructuring.  City Attorney presenting.  
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:    
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION:   
 
Reviewed by City Attorney    □Yes  □No  √N/A 
 
Reviewed by City Engineer     □Yes  □No  √N/A 



RESOLUTION 2021-15

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN AMENDMENTS AND A 

RESTRUCTRUING OF THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

REVENUE BONDS (LAKEVIEW TERRACE SENIOR LIVING 

PROJECT), SERIES 2012A (FIXED RATE BONDS) AND CITY OF 

UMATILLA, FLORIDA REVENUE BONDS (LAKEVIEW 

TERRACE SENIOR LIVING PROJECT), SERIES 2012B 

(ADJUSTABLE RATE BONDS); CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

REVENUE BONDS (LAKEVIEW TERRACE SENIOR LIVING 

PROJECT), SERIES 2016; CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA FIXED 

RATE REVENUE BONDS (LAKEVIEW TERRACE SENIOR 

LIVING PROJECT), SERIES 2018A, CITY OF UMATILLA, 

FLORIDA ADJUSTABLE RATE REVENUE BONDS (LAKEVIEW 

TERRACE SENIOR LIVING PROJECT), SERIES 2018B, AND 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA INDEX FLOATING RATE 

REVENUE BONDS (LAKEVIEW TERRACE SENIOR LIVING 

PROJECT), SERIES 2018C, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING 

FAVORABLE TERMS FOR COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC., THE 

BORROWER RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENTS OF SUCH 

BONDS; AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE 

UNDERLYING BOND TRUST INDENTURES AND CERTAIN 

OTHER DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

RESTRUCTURING OF THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE 

PAYMENT OF THE BONDS BY THE BORROWER; MAKING 

CERTAIN COVENANTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE BONDS; 

APPROVING THE RESTRUCTURING AND REISSUANCE OF 

THE BONDS AFTER A PUBLIC HEARING; PROVIDING 

CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; 

AND PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, A 

REPEALER CLAUSE, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Umatilla, Florida (the "City") is authorized under home rule 

powers under the Constitution of the State of Florida, Part II of Chapter 159, Florida Statutes and 

Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, as supplemented and amended (collectively, the "Act"), to issue 

bonds and to loan the proceeds thereof for the purpose of financing and refinancing "projects" as 

defined in the Act, to promote and develop health care within the boundaries of the City and the 

State of Florida (the "State"), to increase the opportunities for gainful employment and purchasing 

power, and improve living conditions and otherwise contribute to the health and welfare of the 

City, the State and the inhabitants thereof; and  



 

2 

WHEREAS, the City desires to promote such purposes by assisting as described herein to 

support a local facility for the residence or care of the aged in order to provide modern and 

efficient care and services to the inhabitants of the City and care and safe housing of the aged in 

accordance with the Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to further the purposes of the Act, the City has determined to 

approve the restructuring of certain of its conduit bonds as follows: City of Umatilla, Florida 

Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2012A (Fixed Rate Bonds) and 

City of Umatilla, Florida Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2012B 

(Adjustable Rate Bonds) (collectively, the "Series 2012 Bonds"); City of Umatilla, Florida 

Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2016 (the "Series 2016 Bonds"); 

and City of Umatilla, Florida Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living 

Project), Series 2018A, City of Umatilla, Florida Adjustable Rate Revenue Bonds (Lakeview 

Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2018B, and City of Umatilla, Florida Index Floating Rate 

Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2018C (collectively, the "Series 

2018 Bonds" together with the Series 2012 Bonds and the Series 2016 Bonds the "Bonds"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has been requested to restructure the Bonds by Community 

Supports, Inc., a not-for-profit corporation (the "Borrower") which currently owns and operates 

the senior living facilities known as Lakeview Terrace Retirement Community, and is 

responsible for the repayment of the Bonds under the terms of certain Loan Agreements (and 

certain other security documents) between the City and the Borrower; and 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY.  This Resolution (hereinafter called the "Resolution") is 

adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Constitution of the State, Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 

as amended, Chapter 159, Part II, Florida Statutes, as amended, the home rule powers of the City 

and other applicable provisions of law. 

 

SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS.  Unless the context otherwise requires, when used in this 

Resolution the terms defined in this section shall have the meanings specified in this section.  

Words importing singular number shall include the plural number in each case and vice versa, 

and words importing persons shall include firms and corporations. 

 

"Authorized Officers" shall mean the Mayor and either the Clerk or the Acting City Clerk 

of the City. 

 

"Bond Counsel" shall mean Bryant Miller Olive P.A. or any other attorney at law or firm of 

attorneys reasonably acceptable to the City, the Bond Trustee and the Borrower of nationally 

recognized standing in matters pertaining to the validity of and the tax-exempt nature of interest 

on bonds issued by states and their political subdivisions, duly admitted to the practice of law 

before the highest court of any state of the United States of America. 



 

3 

 

"Bond Trustee" shall mean U.S. Bank National Association, as bond trustee under the 

Bond Indentures relating to the Bonds. 

 

"Bondholder" shall mean the beneficial owners of the Bonds for whom Hamlin Capital 

Management, LLC, serves as either an investment advisor or as a manager of such owner’s 

limited partnership. 

 

"City" shall mean the City of Umatilla, Florida, a municipality and a political subdivision 

of the State. 

 

"Clerk" shall mean the City Clerk, any acting City Clerk, or any interim City Clerk.  

 

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

 

"Facility" or "Lakeview Terrace" shall mean Lakeview Terrace Retirement Community, 

located at 331 Raintree Drive, Altoona, Florida, which the Borrower owns and operates as a 

continuing care retirement community and associated health care and safe housing center that 

provides assisted living and long-term skilled nursing care. 

 

"First Amendment to Bond Indentures" shall mean collectively, the three First 

Amendment to Bond Trust Indentures to be entered into by and between the City and the Bond 

Trustee in substantially the form attached hereto as composite Exhibit A, as amended or 

supplemented from time to time. 

 

"Indemnification Agreement" shall mean the Indemnification and Hold Harmless 

Agreement from the Borrower to the City. 

 

"Loan Agreements" shall mean collectively the Loan Agreements previously entered into 

by and between the City and the Borrower with respect to each series of Bonds, as amended from 

time to time. 

 

"Projects" shall mean (i) the following facilities at Lakeview Terrace which were financed 

and refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2012 Bonds: (a) completing the exterior renovations 

of existing garden homes, apartments and carports, (b) constructing a new main entrance west of 

State Route 19 and north of Keene Road, (c) constructing seven 4-unit independent living villas, 

(d) constructing a 5-story independent living tower, (e) replacing the wastewater treatment 

facility and (f) refinancing existing debt used for renovations to the Lakeview Terrace facilities 

(the "2012 Project");  

 

(ii) the following facilities at Lakeview Terrace which were financed and refinanced with 

the proceeds of the Series 2016 Bonds: the renovation, expansion, equipping and construction of 

(a) an approximate 3,100 square foot multi-functional fitness center with an approximate 5,000 



 

4 

square foot screened pool with a spa and decking with additional supporting space and 

equipment of approximately 1,750 square feet, (b) a Lakeview Terrace skilled nursing facility with 

up to 4 approximate 13,600 square foot cluster home buildings with private rooms, lounge areas, 

dining and supporting facilities and an approximate 6,300 square foot core building with 

connecting corridors and (c) renovation and modifications to the community’s dining facilities 

(the "2016 Project"); and  

 

(iii) the following facilities which were financed and refinanced with the proceeds of the 

Series 2018 Bonds: the construction and equipping of new facilities to be part of Lakeview Terrace 

Retirement Community, consisting collectively of (a) a residential tower building with 

approximately thirty-one (31) independent living units; (b) approximately nine (9) independent 

living villas each containing four (4) residential units; (c) a clubhouse to include new dining 

facilities, administrative offices and additional expansion space; (d) common area landscaping; 

and (e) improvements and facilities in support of (a) through (d) above (the "2018 Project"). 

 

SECTION 3.  FINDINGS.  It is hereby ascertained, determined, and declared as follows: 

 

A. The City is authorized by the Act and has previously issued revenue bonds and 

made loans to the Borrower and has pledged or assigned as security for the payment of the 

principal of and interest on such revenue bonds any money or other revenues to be derived or 

received by the City under the Loan Agreements. 

 

B. The previous issuance of the Bonds has promoted the public health and general 

welfare of the City and its residents and the restructuring and reissuance of the Bonds as 

described in the First Amendment to Bond Indentures will lower the debt service on the Bonds 

and will therefore improve the health and living conditions of such residents by lowering the cost 

of the debt service for the Borrower to in turn assist in providing economical, safe housing and 

care for seniors in a continuing care retirement community and related health facilities within the 

City. 

 

C. Adequate provision is made under the terms of the Loan Agreements for the 

payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.  Taking into 

consideration the Borrower's ratio of current assets to current liabilities, net worth, earning trends, 

coverage of all fixed charges, the security for the Bonds and other factors determinative of the 

capability of the Borrower, financially or otherwise, the City hereby finds in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act that the Borrower is financially responsible and fully capable and willing to 

fulfill its obligations under the Loan Agreements, including the obligations to make payments in 

the amounts and at the times required and to operate, repair and maintain at its own expense the 

Borrower’s facilities, including Lakeview Terrace which includes the Projects financed and 

refinanced with the Bonds.  

 

D. The Loan Agreements and the First Amendment to Bond Indentures, as herein 

described, provide for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the 



 

5 

Bonds.  The City will be able to continue to cope satisfactorily with the impact of the Projects and 

will continue to provide, or cause to be provided when needed, the public facilities, including 

utilities and public services, that will be necessary for the construction, operation, repair and 

maintenance of the facilities included in the Projects and on account of any increases in 

population or other circumstances resulting therefrom. 

 

E. The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and all payments to 

be made on behalf of the City required under and pursuant to the Loan Agreements and the Bond 

Indentures, as amended, shall be payable solely from the proceeds to be derived by the City 

under and pursuant to the Loan Agreements, and the City shall never be required to pay the same 

from any funds of the City other than those derived by the City under the Loan Agreements.  

Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State, Lake County, or the City or of any 

other political subdivision thereof, is pledged to the payment of the principal of or interest on the 

Bonds.  The issuance of the Bonds shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate Lake 

County, the City, the State, or any political subdivision thereof to levy or to pledge any form of 

taxation whatever therefor or to make any appropriation for their payment. 

 

F. The City has been advised by Bond Counsel that, assuming compliance with 

certain tax covenants, the interest on the Bonds will be excluded from gross income of the holders 

thereof for purposes of federal income taxation under existing laws of the United States. 

 

G. Section 147(f) of the Code requires as a condition of exclusion from gross income 

for federal income tax purposes of the interest on private activity bonds, that the issuance of 

private activity bonds, as defined in Section 141(a) of the Code, such as the Bonds, be approved, 

after a public hearing following reasonable public notice, by the governmental unit having 

jurisdiction over the area in which the Project is located. 

 

H. The Borrower has requested the City, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Code, 

approve the restructuring and reissuance of the Bonds. 

 

I. The City Council of the City (the "Council") on June 22, 2021, caused to be posted 

a notice of a public hearing on the City's website, to be held on July 6, 2021, at 6:00 p.m., or as 

soon thereafter as the same may be heard, in the City Hall in the Council Chambers, 1 South 

Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784, to consider the restructuring and reissuance of the 

Bonds and the nature of the Projects to be refinanced with the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

J. The public hearing so noticed, was duly held on the date hereof. 

 

SECTION 4. AUTHORIZATION OF RESTRUCTURING AND REISSUANCE OF 

THE BONDS.  The Bonds are hereby authorized to be reissued in an aggregate principal amount 

$6,720,000 with respect to the Series 2012 Bonds, $8,865,000 with respect to the Series 2016 Bonds 

and $19,595,000 with respect to the Series 2018 Bonds, in the form and manner to be described in 

the First Amendment to Bond Indentures.  The restructured and reissued Bonds will be dated the 



 

6 

date of delivery of the Bonds to the Bondholder, and interest thereon shall be payable as is 

provided in the Bond Indenture. 

 

SECTION 5.  TEFRA APPROVAL.  The reissuance of the Bonds by the City in the 

aggregate principal amounts listed in Section 4 hereof for the benefit of the Borrower is hereby 

approved as required by Section 147(f) of the Code.  The Projects which consists of the prior 

facilities financed with the proceeds of the Bonds are located in the City and are owned and 

operated by the Borrower. 

 

SECTION 6.  AUTHORIZATION OF EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO BOND INDENTURES.  As security for the payment of the principal of and 

premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and in order to modify, amend and restructure certain 

terms of the Bonds, the First Amendment to the Bond Indentures, in substantially the forms 

thereof attached hereto as composite Exhibit A, with such changes, alterations and corrections as 

may be approved by the Authorized Officers, such approval to be presumed by their execution 

thereof, is hereby approved by the City, and the City hereby authorizes the Authorized Officers to 

execute and to attest the First Amendment to Bond Indentures under the corporate seal of the City 

and to deliver the First Amendment to the Bond Indentures to the Bond Trustee all of the 

provisions of which, when executed and delivered by the City as authorized herein and by the 

Bond Trustee duly authorized, shall be deemed to be a part of this Resolution as fully and to the 

same extent as if incorporated verbatim herein.  By incorporation of the First Amendment to Bond 

Indentures herein, the City provides the terms, conditions, covenants, rights, obligations, duties 

and agreement to and for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds, the City, the Borrower and the 

Bond Trustee. 

 

SECTION 7.  AUTHORIZATION OF EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT.  The Indemnification 

Agreement, in substantially the form thereof attached hereto as Exhibit B, with such changes, 

alterations and corrections as may be approved by the Authorized Officers,  such approval to be 

presumed by their execution thereof, is hereby approved by the City, and the City hereby 

authorizes the Authorized Officers to execute and to attest the Indemnification Agreement under 

the corporate seal of the City and to accept the deliver the Indemnification Agreement from the 

Borrower all of the provisions of which, when executed and delivered by the City as authorized 

herein and by the Borrower duly authorized, shall be deemed to be a part of this Resolution as 

fully and to the same extent as if incorporated verbatim herein. 

 

SECTION 8.  NO PERSONAL LIABILITY.  No covenant, stipulation, obligation or 

agreement herein contained or contained in the Loan Agreements or the Bond Indentures or the 

First Amendment to Bond Indentures shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or 

agreement of any officer, member, attorney, agent or employee of the City or its governing body 

in his individual capacity, and neither the City nor any official executing the Bonds shall be liable 

personally thereon or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the 

issuance thereof. 



 

7 

 

SECTION 9.  NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  Except as herein or in the Loan 

Agreements or in the Bond Indentures or in the First Amendment to Bond Indentures otherwise 

expressly provided, nothing in this Resolution or in the Loan Agreements or in the Bond 

Indentures or in the First Amendment to Bond Indentures, expressed or implied, is intended or 

shall be construed to confer upon any person or firm or corporation other than the City, the 

Borrower, the Bondholder, the Bondholder Representative (as defined in the Bond Indentures or 

First Amendment to Bond Indentures) and the Bond Trustee any right, remedy or claim, legal or 

equitable, under and by reason of this Resolution or any provision thereof or of the Loan 

Agreements or of the Bond Indentures or; this Resolution, the Loan Agreements and the Bond 

Indentures and all provisions thereof being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive 

benefit of the City, the Borrower, the Bondholder, the Bondholder Representative and the Bond 

Trustee. 

 

SECTION 10.  PREREQUISITES PERFORMED.  All acts, conditions and things relating 

to the passage of this Resolution, to the restructuring and reissuance of the Bonds, and to the 

execution of the First Amendment to Bond Indentures required by the Constitution or laws of the 

State to happen, exist and be performed precedent to and in the passage hereof, and precedent to 

the issuance of the Bonds, and precedent to the execution and delivery of the First Amendment to 

Bond Indentures have happened, exist and have been performed as so required. 

 

SECTION 11.  ASSENTS, ACCEPTANCES AND APPROVALS.  The Authorized 

Officers of the City are authorized to execute such tax documents, acceptances, waivers, notices, 

approvals, certifications, exchange documents for the Bonds, and other documents, as the City 

and Bond Counsel may deem necessary for the City to amend and restructure the Bonds in the 

manner contemplated by the Loan Agreements and the First Amendment to Bond Indentures. 

 

SECTION 12.  TAX COVENANTS.  The City covenants that it will not make and will not 

direct the Bond Trustee to make any investments or acquiesce in the making of any investments 

by the Bond Trustee pursuant to or under the Loan Agreements or the Bond Indentures which 

could cause the Bonds issued as tax-exempt obligations to be "arbitrage bonds" within the 

meaning of Section 148 of the Code and the applicable regulations issued thereunder. 

 

The City shall at all times do and perform all acts and things permitted by law and this 

Resolution which are necessary or desirable in order to assure that interest paid on the Bonds will 

be excluded from gross income of the holders thereof for purposes of federal income taxation and 

shall take no action that would result in such interest not being excluded therefrom.  In 

furtherance thereof the Authorized Officers of the City are hereby authorized to execute and 

deliver Tax Regulatory Agreements in connection with the restructure and reissuance of the 

Bonds in such form and substance as shall be approved by the Authorized Officers of the City 

executing the same. 

 



 

8 

SECTION 13.  BOND INDENTURES TO CONSTITUTE CONTRACT.  In consideration 

of the acceptance of the Bonds issued under the Bond Indentures, as amended by the First 

Amendment to Bond Indentures, by the Bondholder, the amended Bond Indentures shall be 

deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the City and the Bondholder.  The covenants 

and agreements herein and in the Loan Agreements and the amended Bond Indentures to be 

performed by the City shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Bondholder 

secured respectively thereby, all of which shall be of equal rank and without preference, priority 

or distinction of any of the Bonds over any others thereof, except as expressly provided therein. 

 

SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS.  If any one or more of the 

covenants, agreements or provisions contained in this Resolution, the Loan Agreements or the 

amended Bond Indentures shall be held contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to 

the policy of express law, though not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall for 

any reason whatsoever be held invalid, then such covenants, agreements or provisions shall be 

null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining covenants, agreements or 

provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of any of the other provisions hereof or of the 

Bonds. 

 

SECTION 15.  REPEALING CLAUSE.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, of the City in 

conflict with the provisions herein contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded 

and repealed. 

 

SECTION 16. LIMITATION OF APPROVAL.  The approval contained in this 

Resolution shall not be construed as an approval of any zoning application or any regulatory 

permit required in connection with the Projects or creating any vested rights with respect to any 

land use regulations, and the City and City Council shall not be construed by virtue of adoption 

of this Resolution to have waived, or be estopped from asserting, any rights or responsibilities it 

may have in that regard.  Further, the approval in this Resolution shall not be construed to 

obligate the City to incur any liability, pecuniary or otherwise, in connection with either the 

restructuring or reissuance of the Bonds.  In addition, approval given herein shall not be 

construed as (a) an endorsement of the creditworthiness of the Borrower or the financial viability 

of the Projects, (b) a recommendation to the Bondholder, or any prospective purchaser to hold the 

Bonds, or (c) an evaluation of the likelihood of the repayment of the debt service on the Bonds. 



 

9 

SECTION 17.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 

adoption. 

 

This Resolution was passed and approved this 6th day of July, 2021. 

 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

(SEAL) 

 

By:   

 Kent Adcock, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:       

 Gwen Johns, Acting City Clerk 

       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

By:   

 City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

j:\wdox\docs\clients\26091\004\ordres\01787995.doc 

 



 
 

 

 

 EXHIBIT A TO THE AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

 

 FORM OF FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND INDENTURES 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE 

between 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

and 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

Trustee 

Dated as of July 1, 2021 

AMENDING THE BOND TRUST INDENTURE DATED AS OF DECEMBER 1, 2012 

SECURING THE:  

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

REVENUE BONDS  

(LAKEVIEW TERRACE SENIOR LIVING PROJECT), 

SERIES 2012A AND SERIES 2012B 



i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I. AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION ......................................... 2 

 First Amendment to Constitute Contract .................................................................... 3 

 Construction..................................................................................................................... 3 

 Rules of Construction ..................................................................................................... 3 

 Amendments to the Original Indenture ...................................................................... 3 

 Direction to Authenticate ............................................................................................... 8 

 Purchase in Lieu of Redemption ................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE II. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER 

REPRESENTATIVE ARRANGEMENT ................................................................................................ 10 

 Conditions Precedent ................................................................................................... 10 

 Series 2012 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement .......... 10 

ARTICLE III. MISCELLANEOUS ............................................................................................. 11 

 First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture ........................................... 11 

 Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further Amendment 11 

 Counterparts .................................................................................................................. 11 

 Severability ..................................................................................................................... 11 

 Effective Date ................................................................................................................. 11 

EXHIBIT A - Form of Series 2012A Replacement Bonds 

EXHIBIT B - Form of Series 2012B Replacement Bonds 

EXHIBIT C - Additional Exhibit E to Original Indenture 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE dated as of July 1, 2021 

(this "First Amendment"), between the CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA (the "Issuer"), a duly 

constituted municipality under the laws of the State of Florida (the "State") and U.S. BANK 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (as successor trustee to Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, a 

national banking association), having a corporate trust office in Jacksonville, Florida, as Bond 

Trustee (in such capacity, together with any successor in such capacity the "Bond Trustee"), 

amends the certain Bond Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2012 between the Issuer and 

the Bond Trustee (the "Original Bond Trust Indenture" and collectively with this First 

Amendment, the "Indenture"). 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized under its home rule powers, under the Constitution 

of the State of Florida, Part II of Chapter 159, Florida Statutes and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 

as supplemented and amended (collectively, the "Act"), to issue bonds and to loan the proceeds 

thereof for the purpose of financing and refinancing "projects" as defined in the Act, to promote 

and develop public health care within the Issuer and the State, to increase the opportunities for 

gainful employment and purchasing power, and improve living conditions and otherwise 

contribute to the health and welfare of the Issuer, the State and the inhabitants thereof; and  

WHEREAS, the Issuer has promoted such purposes by assisting in the acquisition, 

construction, equipping, expansion, enlargement and improvement of facilities for the residence 

or care of the aged in order to provide modern and efficient housing and medical services to the 

inhabitants of the Issuer and care of the aged in accordance with the Act; and 

WHEREAS, in particular the Issuer has assisted in the financing and refinancing of 

projects relating to the residence or care of the aged owned and operated by organizations which 

are exempt from taxation pursuant to §501(c)(3) of the Code in order to reduce the costs of 

residents of the Issuer of utilizing such facilities; and 

WHEREAS, in order to further the purposes of the Act, the Issuer previously issued three 

series of revenue bonds on December 6, 2012 (the "Series 2012 Bonds" or the "Bonds"), with one 

Series having been paid in full, and used the proceeds thereof to make a loan to Community 

Supports, Inc., a not-for-profit corporation (the "Corporation") which currently owns and 

operates the senior living facilities known as Lakeview Terrace Retirement Community (herein 

referred to as "Lakeview Terrace" or the "Facility"), under the terms of a Loan Agreement dated 

as of December 1, 2012 (the "Loan Agreement"), between the Issuer and the Corporation; and  

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2012 Bonds were used to finance and refinance the 

following facilities at Lakeview Terrace: (a) completing the exterior renovations of existing 

garden homes, apartments and carports, (b) constructing a new main entrance west of State Route 

19 and north of Keene Road, (c) constructing seven 4-unit independent living villas, 

(d) constructing a 5-story independent living tower, (e) replacing the wastewater treatment 



2

facility and (f) refinancing existing debt used for renovations to the Lakeview Terrace facilities 

(the "Series 2012 Project"); and to additionally finance the payoff of certain existing debt, 

capitalized interest, working capital, debt service reserve funds, and the costs of issuing the Series 

2012 Bonds and other eligible expenditures with the proceeds; and 

WHEREAS,  the Issuer has been advised by the Corporation, that the Bondholder 

Representative for the Series 2012 Bonds has agreed to undertake a restructuring of certain terms 

of the Series 2012 Bonds as set forth herein in order to reduce the debt service payments thereon 

and extend the maturity date thereof among other matters; and  

WHEREAS, the Issuer previously entered into the Original Bond Indenture for the 

purpose of authorizing the Series 2012 Bonds and securing the payment thereof and now herein 

agrees to the amendments in this First Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2012 Bonds were issued by the Issuer on December 6, 2012 and at 

least 66 2/3% of the Series 2012 Bonds are still beneficially owned by persons for whom Hamlin 

Capital Management, LLC (the "Bondholder Representative") serves as either an investment 

advisor or as a manager of such owner's limited partnership; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1102 of the Original Bond Indenture provides that the Issuer and the 

Bond Trustee may execute and deliver any supplemental indenture, including a supplemental 

indenture which reduces the rate of interest and revises the principal repayment schedule on the 

Series 2012 Bonds, upon the receipt of written consent of the Bondholder Representative; and  

WHEREAS, the Issuer is executing this First Supplemental Indenture at the request of the 

Corporation in order to reduce the rate of interest and revise the principal repayment schedule 

on the Series 2012 Bonds and to make certain other changes to the Series 2012 Bonds and the 

Original Bond Indenture;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS FIRST AMENDMENT FURTHER WITNESSETH: 

IN TRUST, for the equal and proportionate benefit and security of the holders from time 

to time of the Series 2012 Bonds issued under and secured by the Original Bond Indenture as 

amended by this First Amendment, without privilege, priority or distinction as to the lien or 

otherwise of any of the Series 2012 Bonds over any of the others, except in the case of funds held 

hereunder for the benefit of particular owners of Series 2012 Bonds, and the terms and provisions 

of the Original Indenture shall remain in full force and effect, except as hereby amended. 

ARTICLE I.

AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION 

The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees with the Bond Trustee and with the respective 

registered owners, from time to time, of the Series 2012 Bonds as follows: 



3

First Amendment to Constitute Contract.  The provisions of this First 

Amendment shall be part of the contract of the Issuer under the Original Indenture with the 

Bondholders, and shall be deemed to be and shall constitute contracts among the Issuer, the 

Trustee and the Bondholders from time to time of the Bonds.  The pledge made by the Indenture 

and the provisions, covenants and agreements herein set forth to be performed by or on behalf of 

the Issuer shall continue to be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Bondholders of 

any and all of the Bonds except as otherwise provided in Article VIII of the Original Indenture or 

with respect to moneys otherwise held to redeem or pay particular Bonds hereunder. 

Construction.  The parties hereto acknowledge that each such party and its 

respective counsel have participated in the drafting of this First Amendment.  Accordingly, the 

parties agree that any rule of construction which disfavors the drafting party shall not apply in 

the interpretation of this First Amendment. 

Rules of Construction. For all purposes of this First Amendment, the rules of 

construction in Article I of the Original Indenture shall apply. 

Amendments to the Original Indenture.  The parties hereby agree that the 

Original Indenture shall be amended as follows: 

(a) The definitions of "Initial Reset Date," "Financial Advisor," "Reset Date," and "Reset 

Period" in Section 101 of the Original Bond Indenture are hereby deleted in their entirety and 

replaced with the following and the definition of "5 Year MMD" is hereby added:  

"Initial Reset Date" shall be January 1, 2023. 

"Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor" means Hamlin Capital Advisors, 

LLC and its successors and assigns. 

All usage of the term "Financial Advisor" shall be deemed to instead be the term 

"Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor". 

"Reset Date" shall mean the Initial Reset Date and thereafter the first day of each 

Reset Period which shall be on a January 1. 

"Reset Period" shall mean a period of ten (10) years, or with respect to the final 

Reset Period prior to the maturity date of the Series 2012B Bonds five (5) years, in duration 

ending on the last day of December, or on the maturity date of the Series 2012B Bonds, if 

earlier, and beginning on the first day after the previous Reset Period as established 

pursuant to Section 203. 

"5 Year MMD" shall mean as of any particular date, an interest rate equal to the 

Municipal Market Data Index for general obligation bonds having an "Aaa," "Aaa" or 

"AAA" credit rating from Moody's, Standard and Poor's or Fitch, respectively, having a 



4

term equal to 5 years, published on the most recent date on or prior to such date by 

Thomson Reuters in the Thompson Municipal Market Monitor, or if such index is not 

available, another comparable index determined by the Bond Trustee and approved by 

the Bondholder Representative. 

(b) Section 202(a) of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting 

subsection (a) in its entirety and substituting the following as subsection (a) therefor: 

"(a) The Series 2012A Bonds shall be issuable as registered bonds in Authorized 

Denominations, shall be numbered appropriately, shall bear interest payable 

semiannually commencing on January 1, 2022, and on each July 1 and January 1 thereafter 

at the rates described below and shall mature on July 1, 2022, on July 1, 2032, and on 

July 1, 2047." 

(c) Section 202 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby further amended by deleting 

subsection (b) in its entirety and substituting the following as subsection (b) therefor: 

"(b) The interest rates, principal amounts and maturity dates for the 

Series 2012A Bonds shall be as follows: 

Bond Number Amount Interest Rate 

Maturity 

Date 

R-A-13 $ 100,000 6.50% July 1, 2022

R-A-14   1,110,000 6.50 July 1, 2032 

R-A-15   2,200,000 6.50 July 1, 2047"

(d) Section 203(a) of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting 

subsection (a) in its entirety and substituting the following as subsection (a) therefor: 

"(a) The Series 2012B Bonds shall be issuable as registered bonds in Authorized 

Denominations, shall be numbered appropriately, shall bear interest payable 

semiannually commencing on January 1, 2022, and on each July 1 and January 1 thereafter 

at the rates described below and shall mature on July 1, 2047.  Each Series 2012B Bond 

shall be dated the date of delivery." 

(e) Section 203(b) of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting the 

first three paragraphs of subsection (b) in their entirety and substituting the following therefor: 

"(b) The interest rate, principal amount and maturity date for the Series 2012B 

Bonds shall be as follows:  

Bond Number Amount Interest Rate 

Maturity 

Date 

R-B-5 $3,310,000 5.50% July 1, 2047



5

On the Initial Reset Date and any subsequent Reset Date for a Reset Period of ten 

(10) years, the interest rate borne by each Series 2012B Bond shall be adjusted to be equal 

to the sum of 10 year MMD as of 4:30 p.m. on the third Business Day before the Reset Date 

plus 350 basis points, but in no event lower than 5.50% or higher than 6.25%. 

On any subsequent Reset Date for a Reset Period of five (5) years, the interest rate 

borne by each Series 2012B Bond shall be adjusted to be equal to the sum of 5 year MMD 

as of 4:30 p.m. on the third Business Day before the Reset Date plus 350 basis points, but 

in no event lower than 5.50% or higher than 6.25%." 

(f) Section 203(d) of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting 

subsection (d) in its entirety and substituting the following therefore:  

"(d) On each Reset Date, a new Reset Period shall be elected by the Corporation 

having a duration of either 10 years, or 5 years with respect to the final Reset Period prior 

to the maturity date of the Series 2012B Bonds, from such Reset Date.  On each Reset Date 

the Corporation shall deliver to the Bond Trustee an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect 

that such reset will not have an adverse effect on the exemption from federal income 

taxation to which the interest on the Series 2012B Bonds is entitled." 

(g) Section 301 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting 

subsections (b) and (e) in their entirety and substituting the following subsections (b) and (e) 

therefor:  

"(b) The Series 2012A Bonds and the Series 2012B Bonds will be subject to 

redemption by the Issuer, at the direction of the Corporation, in whole or in part on a pro 

rata basis between the Series 2012A Bonds and the Series 2012B Bonds, at any time at the 

following redemption prices, expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be 

redeemed plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption:  

Redemption Dates Redemption Prices 

July 1, 2026 through June 30, 2027, inclusive  101% 

July 1, 2027 and thereafter 100%

(e) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Series 2012A Bonds.  As a sinking 

fund, the Bond Trustee shall redeem the Series 2012A Bonds maturing on July 1, 2022, in 

the year and in the principal amount and at a price of 100% of the principal amount of the 

Series 2012A Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, 

as follows:  

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

2022* $50,000 

______________ 

* Final Maturity 



6

As a sinking fund, the Bond Trustee shall redeem the Series 2012A Bonds maturing 

on July 1, 2032, in years and in principal amounts and at a price of 100% of the principal 

amount of the Series 2012A Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the 

redemption date, as follows: 

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

2023 $55,000 2028 $80,000 

2024 60,000 2029 85,000

2025 65,000 2030 90,000 

2026 70,000 2031 95,000 

2027 75,000 2032* 100,000

_____________________ 

* Final Maturity 

As a sinking fund, the Bond Trustee shall redeem the Series 2012A Bonds maturing 

on July 1, 2047, in years and in principal amounts and at a price of 100% of the principal 

amount of the Series 2012A Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the 

redemption date, as follows: 

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

2033 $105,000 2041 $175,000 

2034 115,000 2042 190,000

2035 120,000 2043 200,000 

2036 130,000 2044 215,000 

2037 140,000 2045 230,000

2038 145,000 2046 240,000 

2039 155,000 2047* 260,000 

2040 165,000

_____________________ 

* Final Maturity 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Series 2012B Bonds.  As a sinking fund, 

the Bond Trustee shall redeem the Series 2012B Bonds maturing on July 1, 2047, in years 

and in principal amounts and at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Series 

2012B Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, as 

follows:  



7

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

2022 $60,000 2035 $120,000 

2023 65,000 2036 125,000

2024 65,000 2037 135,000 

2025 70,000 2038 140,000 

2026 75,000 2039 150,000

2027 80,000 2040 160,000 

2028 85,000 2041 165,000 

2029 90,000 2042 175,000

2030 95,000 2043 185,000 

2031 95,000 2044 195,000 

2032 105,000 2045 205,000

2033 110,000 2046 215,000 

2034 115,000 2047* 230,000 

_____________________ 

* Final Maturity" 

(h) Section 701 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by adding the 

following paragraph (m) thereto: 

"(m) a brokerage account to be invested solely in the Series 2012 Bonds to be 

purchased in lieu of redemption in accordance with the form of direction provided 

pursuant to Section 304 hereto." 

(i) Section 1304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting the section 

in its entirety and substituting the following therefor: 

Unless otherwise provided herein, all demands, notices approvals, consents 

requests, opinions and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed to have been given when delivered in person or mailed by first class mail, postage 

prepaid, addressed:  

(a)  if to the Corporation, at Community Supports, Inc., c/o DSI Management, 

1890 State Road 436, Suite 300, Winter Park, Florida 32792 (Attention: Chief Executive 

Officer), phone number: (407) 645-3211;  

(b)  if to the Issuer, at 1 South Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784 

(Attention:  City Manager), phone number: (352) 669-3125;  

(c)  if to the Bond Trustee, at U.S. Bank National Association, 225 Water Street, 

Suite 700, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 (Attention: Global Corporate Trust), phone number: 

(904) 358-5363; 



8

(d)  if to the Underwriter, at Odeon Capital Group LLC, Municipals 

Department, 750 Lexington Avenue, 27th Floor New York, New York 10022, phone 

number: (704) 317-8535; 

(e)  if to the Bondholder Representative, at Hamlin Capital, 640 Fifth Avenue, 

11th Floor, New York, New York 10019, phone number (212) 752-8777; and 

(f)  if to the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor, at Hamlin Capital 

Advisors, LLC, 5550 West Executive Drive, Suite 235, Tampa, Florida 33609, phone 

number (813) 280-1002. 

A duplicate copy of each demand, notice, approval, request, consent, opinion or 

other communication given hereunder (i) by either the Issuer or the Bond Trustee to the 

other shall also be given to the Corporation, the Bondholder Representative and the 

Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor and (ii) to the Bondholder Representative shall 

also be given to the Underwriter.  The Issuer, the Corporation, the Bond Trustee, the 

Bondholder Representative, the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor and the 

Underwriter may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses 

to which subsequent demands, notices, approvals, consents, requests, opinions or other 

communications shall be sent or persons to whose attention the same shall be directed. 

No notices shall be send to beneficial owners of Hamlin Investor Bonds without 

the consent of the Bondholder Representative, including without limitation, notices of 

failure to comply with covenants and Events of Default. 

Any such communication also may be transmitted to the appropriate party by 

Electronic Means capable of producing a written record and shall be deemed given or 

made at the time of such transmission if, and only if, such transmission of notice shall be 

confirmed in writing sent as specified above.  

Direction to Authenticate.  The Bond Trustee shall authenticate and deliver 

to DTC, in accordance with the DTC “Fast” System, the restated Series 2012A Bonds No. R-A-13, 

R-A-14, and R-A-15 in the form attached to this First Amendment as Exhibit A and the restated 

Series 2012B Bonds No. R-B-5 in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, each executed by the Issuer 

in accordance with Section 206 of the Original Indenture. The restated Series 2012A Bond No. R-

A-13 shall be exchanged for the Series 2012A Bond Nos. R-A-1, R-A-4, R-A-7, and R-A-10. The 

restated Series 2012A Bond No. R-A-14 shall be exchanged for the Series 2012A Bond Nos. R-A-

2, R-A-5, R-A-8, and R-A-11. The restated Series 2012A Bond No. R-A-15 shall be exchanged for 

the Series 2012A Bond Nos. R-A-3, R-A-6, R-A-9, and R-A-12.  The restated Series 2012B Bond No. 

R-B-5 shall be exchanged for the Series 2012B Bond Nos. R-B-1, R-B-2, R-B-3, and R-B-4.  Copies 

of the cancelled Series 2012A Bonds and the cancelled Series 2012B Bonds stamped or otherwise 

annotated with “cancelled” on the cover page shall be provided to bond counsel, and such 

cancelled Series 2012A Bonds and cancelled Series 2012B Bonds shall be disposed of pursuant to 

Section 214 of the Original Indenture. 



9

Purchase in Lieu of Redemption.  Section 304 of the Original Bond Indenture 

is hereby amended by deleting such section in its entirety and substituting the following as 

Section 304 thereof:  

"The Corporation shall have the option as set forth in this Section 304 to cause the Series 

2012 Bonds to be purchased in lieu of redemption pursuant to this Article III.  Such option may 

be exercised by delivery to the Bond Trustee at least three (3) Business Days prior to the 

redemption date of a written notice of the Corporation, with the written consent of the 

Bondholder Representative, specifying that the Series 2012 Bonds shall not be redeemed, but 

instead shall be subject to purchase pursuant to this Section 304.  Upon delivery of such notice, 

the Series 2012 Bonds shall not be redeemed but shall instead be subject to mandatory tender at 

the Purchase Price (as defined below) on the date that would have been the redemption date.  

Any payment for Series 2012 Bonds purchased in lieu of redemption shall be credited as provided 

below in the penultimate paragraph of this Section.  For purposes of this Section 304, “Purchase 

Price” shall mean the price negotiated with the Bondholder Representative or the Bondholder if 

not represented by a Bondholder Representative in connection with delivery of the Bondholder 

Representative’s consent. 

Subject in all cases to operational or other restrictions or requirements of DTC, if so 

directed, the Bond Trustee shall purchase (solely with funds provided by the Corporation or on 

deposit with the Bond Trustee for the redemption of such Series 2012 Bonds) such Series 2012 

Bonds on the date which otherwise would be the redemption date of such Series 2012 Bonds.  

Any of the Series 2012 Bonds called for redemption that are not purchased in lieu of redemption 

shall be redeemed as otherwise required by this Indenture on such redemption date. 

Subject in all cases to any operational or other restrictions or requirements of DTC, on or 

prior to the scheduled redemption date, any direction given to the Bond Trustee may be 

withdrawn by the Corporation by written notice to the Bond Trustee.  Should a direction to 

purchase be withdrawn, the scheduled redemption of such Series 2012 Bonds shall occur. 

The purchase shall be made for the account of the Corporation or its designee. 

No notice of the purchase in lieu of redemption shall be required to be given to the 

Bondholders (other than the notice of redemption otherwise required for such Series 2012 Bond). 

Purchase in lieu of redemption shall be available with respect to Series 2012 Bonds at the 

Purchase Price as may be agreed upon by the Corporation and the Bondholder Representative.  

In order to effect such purchase in lieu of redemption, the Corporation and the Bondholder 

Representative shall deliver to the Bond Trustee a form of direction as provided in Exhibit E 

hereto; and the Bond Trustee is hereby authorized to comply with such direction.  In such instance 

all Series 2012 Bonds so purchased shall be cancelled and the principal amount of such Series 

2012 Bonds shall be credited against the final sinking fund payments due or with respect thereto 

or against the maturities, in inverse order, unless otherwise directed by the Bondholder 

Representative. 



10

To pay the Purchase Price of such Series 2012 Bonds, the Bond Trustee shall use (A) funds 

deposited by the Corporation with the Bond Trustee for such purpose and (B) funds, if any, held 

under this Indenture that the Bond Trustee would have used to pay the outstanding principal of, 

interest on and the redemption premium, if any, that would have been payable on the redemption 

of such Series 2012 Bonds on the scheduled redemption date.  The Bond Trustee shall not 

purchase the Series 2012 Bonds pursuant to the above provisions if by no later than the 

redemption date, sufficient moneys have not been deposited with the Bond Trustee, or such 

moneys are deposited but are not available for such purpose." 

ARTICLE II.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE 

ARRANGEMENT 

Conditions Precedent.  This First Amendment shall be effective if and only if 

the Bond Trustee shall have received, on or prior to the date hereof, the following: 

(a) A certificate of the Issuer regarding the execution, delivery and performance of 

this First Supplemental Indenture;  

(b) A fully executed copy of this First Amendment executed on behalf of the Issuer 

and the Bond Trustee and also executed by and on behalf of the Corporation and by and on behalf 

of the Bondholder Representative which shall reflect and be construed as the consent and 

approval hereof by such parties;  

(c) An Opinion of Bond Counsel as required by Section[s] 1106 [and 1205] of the 

Original Indenture;  

(d) A fully executed and recorded copy of the Mortgage Modification Agreement and 

Notice of Future Advance and the Proforma Endorsements;  

(e) The Internal Revenue Service form 8038 completed by the Issuer with respect to 

the Series 2012A Bonds and the Series 2012B Bonds and a Tax Certificate and Agreement of the 

Issuer and the Corporation dated as of July 15, 2021; and  

(f) An opinion of counsel to the Corporation that the Corporation is an organization 

described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, it has received a letter from the Internal Revenue 

Service to that effect, such letter has not been modified, limited or revoked, it was and is in 

compliance with all terms, conditions, and limitations, if any, contained in such letter applicable 

to it, and it is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code. 

Series 2012 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement.  

The Corporation has agreed to maintain not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of all of its 

Outstanding indebtedness secured under the Master Indenture with clients of Hamlin Capital 



11

Management, LLC and subject to the control of Hamlin Capital Management, LLC as the 

Bondholder Representative. 

ARTICLE III.

MISCELLANEOUS 

First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture. All of the provisions 

of this First Amendment shall be deemed to be and construed as part of the Original Indenture 

to the same extent as if fully set forth therein. 

Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further 

Amendment.  Such and except as herein supplemented by this First Amendment, the Original 

Indenture shall remain in full force and effect. 

Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 

same instrument. 

Severability.  If any clause, provision or section of this First Amendment is 

held illegal or invalid by any court, the illegality or invalidity of such clause, provision or section 

shall not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions or sections hereof, and this First 

Amendment shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid clause, provision or 

section has not been contained herein.  In case any agreement or obligation contained in this First 

Amendment is held to be in violation of law, such agreement or obligation shall nevertheless be 

determined to be the agreement or obligation of the Issuer or the Bond Trustee, as the case may 

be, to the fullest extent permitted by law.  

Effective Date.  This First Amendment has been dated as of the date first 

written solely for the purpose of convenience of reference and shall become effective upon its 

execution and delivery by the parties hereto.  



12

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Bond Trustee have caused this First 

Amendment to Bond Indenture to be executed in their respective corporate names as of the date 

first above written. 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

(SEAL) 

By:  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By: _  

Acting City Clerk 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

as Bond Trustee 

By:  

Authorized Officer 

Acknowledged, Consented to and Agreed: 

COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC. 

By:  

Name:  Kenneth H. Schultz  

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer 

Consented to Pursuant to Section 1102 and  

1104 of the Original Indenture:  

HAMLIN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, 

LLC, as the Bondholder Representative

By:  

Name: Joseph Bridy 

Title:  Partner  

j:\wdox\docs\clients\26091\005\misc\01792712.docx



EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF SERIES 2012A REPLACEMENT BOND 



EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF SERIES 2012B REPLACEMENT BOND



C-1 

EXHIBIT C  

ADDITIONAL EXHIBIT E OF ORIGINAL INDENTURE 

FORM OF DIRECTION REGARDING PURCHASE IN LIEU OF REDEMPTION 

[Date] 

U.S. Bank National Association 
225 Water Street, Suite 700 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 
Attention: Ms. Sheryl Lear 

City of Umatilla, Florida Revenue Bonds 
(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), 

Series 2012A and Series 2012B 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Reference is made to that certain Bond Trust Indenture relating to the captioned obligations 
(the “Series 2012 Bonds”) dated as of December 1, 2012 (as amended from time to time and in 
particular as amended by the First Amendment thereto dated as of July 1, 2021, the “Indenture”) 
between City of Umatilla, Florida (the “Issuer”) and U.S. Bank National Association (the 
“Trustee”).  The captioned obligations provided funds to make a loan to Community Supports, 
Inc. (the “Corporation”).  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Indenture. 

This letter of direction (the “Direction”) is given by the Corporation pursuant to Section 
304 of the Indenture, with the consent of the Bondholder Representative.  The Bondholder 
Representative has the authority to execute this Direction on behalf of the Bondholders and hereby 
waives any notices required by the Indenture in connection with the purchase in lieu of redemption 
or redemption contemplated by this Direction. 

In accordance with Section 304 of the Indenture, the Corporation and the Bondholder 
Representative desire to cause certain of the Series 2012 Bonds as described below to be purchased 
in lieu of redemption on or before [date].  Specifically, the Corporation, with the consent of the 
Bondholder Representative, intends to (i) [describe purchases and cancellations of the Series 2012 
Bonds and utilization of moneys in the Bond Fund and accounts therein for such purposes].  The 
Corporation and the Bondholder Representative wish to execute the foregoing purchases through 
an account (the “Broker Account”) established by the Corporation for that purpose at [insert name 
of broker dealer] (the “Broker”). 

The Corporation and the Bondholder Representative hereby direct the Trustee to [revise as 
necessary] transfer $_______ from funds on deposit in the Principal Account of the Bond Fund 
and $_______ from funds on deposit in the Interest Account of the Bond Fund to the Broker 
Account, pursuant to wire instructions to be sent to the Trustee, which funds shall be used by the 
Corporation in order to achieve the purchase in lieu of redemption of the Series 2012 Bonds 



C-2 

described herein.  The Corporation hereby grants a security interest in, lien upon, and pledge of 
the Broker Account to the Trustee until the portion of the Series 2012 Bonds referenced above are 
cancelled.  The Corporation agrees that in the event all or any portion of the funds on deposit in 
the Broker Account are not used to purchase and cancel such Series 2012 Bonds on or before 
[date], such funds shall immediately be returned to the Trustee without request from any party.  
The Corporation further agrees to provide a copy of this Direction to the Broker and to cause the 
Broker to provide notice to the Trustee of the purchase of the Series 2012 Bonds promptly 
thereafter and to deliver such Series 2012 Bonds to the Trustee whereupon the Trustee shall cancel 
such Series 2012 Bonds. 

The Corporation and the Bondholder Representative acknowledge that the actions taken 
by the Trustee pursuant to this Direction shall be presumed to constitute actions taken by the 
Trustee in good faith and in accordance with the Indenture.  In accordance with Section 5.3 of the 
Loan Agreement, the Corporation hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee, the 
Bondholder Representative and their agents, employees, directors, officers, controlling persons, 
counsel and advisors (the “Indemnified Parties”), from and against any and all costs, expenses, 
claims, damages or liabilities (including reasonable attorney’s fees, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees incurred in enforcing such indemnification) (the “Losses”) incurred by or asserted 
against the Indemnified Parties relating to or arising in any way from actions taken or not taken by 
the Indemnified Parties in reliance upon and in compliance with the representations, directions and 
instructions of the Corporation pursuant to this Direction (including, without limitation, any claim 
asserted by any Bondholder due to a failure on the part of the Corporation or the Broker to effect 
the transactions contemplated herein); provided, however, that the Indemnified Parties shall not be 
indemnified against Losses finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been 
solely caused by their own gross negligence, willful misconduct, or bad faith in connection with a 
failure to comply with this Direction. 

This Direction shall not be deemed a waiver or the exercise of any other rights or remedies 
granted to the Bondholder Representative, the Holders of the Series 2012 Bonds or the Trustee 
under the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, or any other instrument or document relating to the 
Series 2012 Bonds (the “Bond Documents”), and the Bondholder Representative and the Trustee 
reserve the right to exercise any other right or remedy with respect to any default or Event of 
Default which may exist now or in the future under the Bond Documents. 

By its signature below, the undersigned representative of the Bondholder Representative 
represents and warrants: (i) that it has the full power and authority to execute and deliver this valid, 
and binding obligations of the Bondholder Representative enforceable in accordance with the 
terms of this Direction, and (ii) that it has the full power and authority on behalf of the Bondholders 
to direct the Trustee to take the actions directed herein. 



C-3 

By its signature below, the undersigned representative of the Corporation represents, 
warrants and agrees: (i) that it has the full power and authority to execute and deliver this Direction 
on behalf of the Corporation, (ii) to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the Bondholder 
Representative and the Trustee in connection with preparing and providing the direction contained 
in this Direction, and (iii) to file or caused to be filed a notice on EMMA related to the transactions 
contemplated by this Direction. 

COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC., 
as Corporation 

By:_______________________ 
Name: ____________________ 
Title: _____________________ 

HAMLIN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, 
LLC, as Bondholder Representative 

By: _________________________ 
Name: _______________________ 
Title: _______________________ 

Acknowledged and agreed to: 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as Trustee 

By: _______________________ 
Name: ____________________ 
Title: _____________________ 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE 

between 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

and 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

Trustee 

Dated as of July 1, 2021 

AMENDING THE BOND TRUST INDENTURE DATED AS OF FEBRUARY 1, 2016 

SECURING THE:  

$8,865,000 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

REVENUE BONDS  

(LAKEVIEW TERRACE SENIOR LIVING PROJECT), 

SERIES 2016 



i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I. AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION ......................................... 3

 First Amendment to Constitute Contract .................................................................... 3

 Construction..................................................................................................................... 3

 Rules of Construction ..................................................................................................... 3

 Amendments to the Original Indenture ...................................................................... 3

 Direction to Authenticate ............................................................................................... 7

ARTICLE II. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER 

REPRESENTATIVE ARRANGEMENT .................................................................................................. 8

 Conditions Precedent ..................................................................................................... 8

 Series 2016 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement ............ 8

ARTICLE III. MISCELLANEOUS ............................................................................................... 9

 First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture ............................................. 9

 Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further Amendment .. 9

 Counterparts .................................................................................................................... 9

 Severability ....................................................................................................................... 9

 Effective Date ................................................................................................................... 9

EXHIBIT A - Form of Series 2016 Replacement Bonds 

EXHIBIT B - Additional Exhibit C to Original Bond Indenture 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE dated as of July 1, 2021 

(this "First Amendment"), between the CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA (the "Issuer"), a duly 

constituted municipality under the laws of the State of Florida (the "State") and U.S. BANK 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (as successor trustee to Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, a 

national banking association), having a corporate trust office in Jacksonville, Florida, as Bond 

Trustee (in such capacity, together with any successor in such capacity the "Bond Trustee"), 

amends the certain Bond Trust Indenture dated as of February 1, 2016 between the Issuer and the 

Bond Trustee (the "Original Bond Trust Indenture" and collectively with this First Amendment, 

the "Indenture"). 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized under its home rule powers, under the Constitution 

of the State of Florida, Part II of Chapter 159, Florida Statutes and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 

as supplemented and amended (collectively, the "Act"), to issue bonds and to loan the proceeds 

thereof for the purpose of financing and refinancing "projects" as defined in the Act, to promote 

and develop public health care within the Issuer and the State, to increase the opportunities for 

gainful employment and purchasing power, and improve living conditions and otherwise 

contribute to the health and welfare of the Issuer, the State and the inhabitants thereof; and  

WHEREAS, the Issuer has promoted such purposes by assisting in the acquisition, 

construction, equipping, expansion, enlargement and improvement of facilities for the residence 

or care of the aged in order to provide modern and efficient housing and medical services to the 

inhabitants of the Issuer and care of the aged in accordance with the Act; and 

WHEREAS, in particular the Issuer has assisted in the financing and refinancing of 

projects relating to the residence or care of the aged owned and operated by organizations which 

are exempt from taxation pursuant to §501(c)(3) of the Code in order to reduce the costs of 

residents of the Issuer of utilizing such facilities; and 

WHEREAS, in order to further the purposes of the Act, the Issuer previously issued a 

series of revenue bonds on February 11, 2016 (the "Series 2016 Bonds" or the "Bonds"), and used 

the proceeds thereof to make a loan to Community Supports, Inc., a not-for-profit corporation 

(the "Corporation") which currently owns and operates the senior living facilities known as 

Lakeview Terrace Retirement Community (herein referred to as "Lakeview Terrace" or the 

"Facility"), under the terms of a Loan Agreement dated as of February 1, 2016 (the "Loan 

Agreement"), between the Issuer and the Corporation; and  

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2016 Bonds were used to finance and refinance the 

renovation, expansion, equipping and construction of (a) an approximate 3,100 square foot multi-

functional fitness center with an approximate 5,000 square foot screened pool with a spa and 

decking with additional supporting space and equipment of approximately 1,750 square feet, (b) 

a Lakeview Terrace skilled nursing facility with up to 4 approximate 13,600 square foot cluster 



2

home buildings with private rooms, lounge areas, dining and supporting facilities and an 

approximate 6,300 square foot core building with connecting corridors and (c) renovation and 

modifications to the Lakeview Terrace’s dining facilities (the "2016 Project"); and to additionally 

finance capitalized interest, working capital, debt service reserve funds, and the costs of issuing 

the Series 2016 Bonds and other eligible expenditures with the proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has been advised by the Corporation, that the Bondholder 

Representative for the Series 2016 Bonds has agreed to undertake a restructuring of certain terms 

of the Series 2016 Bonds as set forth herein in order to reduce the debt service payments thereon 

and extend the maturity date thereof among other matters; and  

WHEREAS, the Issuer previously entered into the Original Bond Indenture for the 

purpose of authorizing the Series 2016 Bonds and securing the payment thereof and now herein 

agrees to the amendments in this First Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2016 Bonds were issued by the Issuer on February 11, 2016 and at 

least 66 2/3% of the Series 2018 Bonds are still beneficially owned by persons for whom Hamlin 

Capital Management, LLC (the "Bondholder Representative") serves as either an investment 

advisor or as a manager of such owner's limited partnership; and

WHEREAS, Section 1102 of the Original Bond Indenture provides that the Issuer and the 

Bond Trustee may execute and deliver any supplemental indenture, including a supplemental 

indenture which reduces the rate of interest and revises the principal repayment schedule on the 

Series 2016 Bonds, upon the receipt of written consent of the Bondholder Representative; and  

WHEREAS, the Issuer is executing this First Supplemental Indenture at the request of the 

Corporation in order to reduce the rate of interest and revise the principal repayment schedule 

on the Series 2016 Bonds and to make certain other changes to the Series 2016 Bonds and the 

Original Bond Indenture;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS FIRST AMENDMENT FURTHER WITNESSETH: 

IN TRUST, for the equal and proportionate benefit and security of the holders from time 

to time of the Series 2016 Bonds issued under and secured by the Original Bond Indenture as 

amended by this First Amendment, without privilege, priority or distinction as to the lien or 

otherwise of any of the Series 2016 Bonds over any of the others, except in the case of funds held 

hereunder for the benefit of particular owners of Series 2016 Bonds, and the terms and provisions 

of the Original Indenture shall remain in full force and effect, except as hereby amended. 



3

ARTICLE I.

AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION 

The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees with the Bond Trustee and with the respective 

registered owners, from time to time, of the Series 2016 Bonds as follows: 

First Amendment to Constitute Contract.  The provisions of this First 

Amendment shall be part of the contract of the Issuer under the Original Indenture with the 

Bondholders, and shall be deemed to be and shall constitute contracts among the Issuer, the 

Trustee and the Bondholders from time to time of the Bonds.  The pledge made by the Indenture 

and the provisions, covenants and agreements herein set forth to be performed by or on behalf of 

the Issuer shall continue to be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Bondholders of 

any and all of the Bonds except as otherwise provided in Article VIII of the Original Indenture or 

with respect to moneys otherwise held to redeem or pay particular Bonds hereunder. 

Construction.  The parties hereto acknowledge that each such party and its 

respective counsel have participated in the drafting of this First Amendment.  Accordingly, the 

parties agree that any rule of construction which disfavors the drafting party shall not apply in 

the interpretation of this First Amendment. 

Rules of Construction. For all purposes of this First Amendment, the rules of 

construction in Article I of the Original Indenture shall apply. 

Amendments to the Original Indenture.  The parties hereby agree that the 

Original Indenture shall be amended as follows: 

(a) The definition of "Financial Advisor" in Section 101 of the Original Bond Indenture 

is hereby deleted and replaced with the following defined term:  

"Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor" means Hamlin Capital Advisors, 

LLC and its successors and assigns." 

All usage of the term "Financial Advisor" shall be deemed to instead be the term "Limited 

Special Purpose Financial Advisor". 

(b) Section 202(a) and (b) of the Original Bond Indenture are hereby amended by 

deleting subsections (a) and (b) in their entirety and substituting the following as subsections (a) 

and (b) therefor: 

"(a) The Series 2016 Bonds shall be issuable as registered bonds in Authorized 

Denominations, shall be numbered appropriately, shall bear interest payable 

semiannually commencing on January 1, 2022, and on each July 1 and January 1 thereafter 

at the rates described below and shall mature on July 1, 2051." 



4

"(b) The interest rate on the Series 2016 Bonds is 6.25%." 

(c) Section 301 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting 

subsections (b) and (e) in their entirety and substituting the following subsections (b) and (e) 

therefor:  

"(b) The Series 2016 Bonds will be subject to redemption by the Issuer on and 

after July 1, 2027, at the direction of the Corporation, in whole or in part at any time at the 

following redemption prices, expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be 

redeemed plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption:  

Redemption Dates Redemption Prices 

July 1, 2027 through June 30, 2028, inclusive  104% 

July 1, 2028 through June 30, 2029, inclusive 102

July 1, 2029 through June 30, 2030, inclusive 101 

July 1, 2030 and thereafter  100" 

"(e) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Series 2016 Bonds.  As a sinking 

fund, the Bond Trustee shall redeem the Series 2016 Bonds, in the year and in the principal 

amount and at a price of 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2016 Bonds to be 

redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, as follows:  

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

Year 

(July 1) Amount 

2022 $105,000 2037 $265,000 

2023 115,000 2038 285,000

2024 120,000 2039 300,000 

2025 130,000 2040 320,000 

2026 135,000 2041 340,000

2027 145,000 2042 360,000 

2028 155,000 2043 385,000 

2029 165,000 2044 405,000

2030 175,000 2045 435,000 

2031 185,000 2046 460,000 

2032 195,000 2047 490,000

2033 210,000 2048 520,000 

2034 220,000 2049 550,000 

2035 235,000 2050 585,000

2036 250,000 2051* 625,000 

______________ 

* Final Maturity" 

(d) Section 304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting such 

section in its entirety and substituting the following as Section 304 thereof:  



5

"The Corporation shall have the option as set forth in this Section 304 to cause the 

Series 2016 Bonds to be purchased in lieu of redemption pursuant to this Article III.  Such 

option may be exercised by delivery to the Bond Trustee at least three (3) Business Days 

prior to the redemption date of a written notice of the Corporation, with the written 

consent of the Bondholder Representative, specifying that the Series 2016 Bonds shall not 

be redeemed, but instead shall be subject to purchase pursuant to this Section 304.  Upon 

delivery of such notice, the Series 2016 Bonds shall not be redeemed but shall instead be 

subject to mandatory tender at the Purchase Price (as defined below) on the date that 

would have been the redemption date.  Any payment for Series 2016 Bonds purchased in 

lieu of redemption shall be credited as provided below in the penultimate paragraph of 

this Section.  For purposes of this Section 304, “Purchase Price” shall mean the price 

negotiated with the Bondholder Representative or the Bondholder if not represented by a 

Bondholder Representative in connection with delivery of the Bondholder 

Representative’s consent. 

Subject in all cases to operational or other restrictions or requirements of DTC, if 

so directed, the Bond Trustee shall purchase (solely with funds provided by the 

Corporation or on deposit with the Bond Trustee for the redemption of such Series 2016 

Bonds) such Series 2016 Bonds on the date which otherwise would be the redemption date 

of such Series 2016 Bonds.  Any of the Series 2016 Bonds called for redemption that are 

not purchased in lieu of redemption shall be redeemed as otherwise required by this 

Indenture on such redemption date. 

Subject in all cases to any operational or other restrictions or requirements of DTC, 

on or prior to the scheduled redemption date, any direction given to the Bond Trustee 

may be withdrawn by the Corporation by written notice to the Bond Trustee.  Should a 

direction to purchase be withdrawn, the scheduled redemption of such Series 2016 Bonds 

shall occur. 

The purchase shall be made for the account of the Corporation or its designee. 

No notice of the purchase in lieu of redemption shall be required to be given to the 

Bondholders (other than the notice of redemption otherwise required for such Series 2016 

Bond). 

Purchase in lieu of redemption shall be available with respect to Series 2016 Bonds 

at the Purchase Price as may be agreed upon by the Corporation and the Bondholder 

Representative.  In order to effect such purchase in lieu of redemption, the Corporation 

and the Bondholder Representative shall deliver to the Bond Trustee a form of direction 

as provided in Exhibit C hereto; and the Bond Trustee is hereby authorized to comply 

with such direction.  In such instance all Series 2016 Bonds so purchased shall be cancelled 

and the principal amount of such Series 2016 Bonds shall be credited against the final 

sinking fund payments due or with respect thereto or against the maturities, in inverse 

order, unless otherwise directed by the Bondholder Representative. 



6

To pay the Purchase Price of such Series 2016 Bonds, the Bond Trustee shall use 

(A) funds deposited by the Corporation with the Bond Trustee for such purpose and (B) 

funds, if any, held under this Indenture that the Bond Trustee would have used to pay the 

outstanding principal of, interest on and the redemption premium, if any, that would have 

been payable on the redemption of such Series 2016 Bonds on the scheduled redemption 

date.  The Bond Trustee shall not purchase the Series 2016 Bonds pursuant to the above 

provisions if by no later than the redemption date, sufficient moneys have not been 

deposited with the Bond Trustee, or such moneys are deposited but are not available for 

such purpose." 

(e) Section 701 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by adding the 

following paragraph (m) thereto: 

"(m) a brokerage account to be invested solely in the Series 2016 Bonds to be 

purchased in lieu of redemption in accordance with the form of direction provided 

pursuant to Section 304 hereto." 

(f) Section 1304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting the 

section in its entirety and substituting the following therefor: 

Unless otherwise provided herein, all demands, notices approvals, consents 

requests, opinions and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed to have been given when delivered in person or mailed by first class mail, postage 

prepaid, addressed:  

(a)  if to the Corporation, at Community Supports, Inc., c/o DSI Management, 

1890 State Road 436, Suite 300, Winter Park, Florida 32792 (Attention: Chief Executive 

Officer), phone number: (407) 645-3211;  

(b)  if to the Issuer, at 1 South Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784 

(Attention:  City Manager), phone number: (352) 669-3125;  

(c)  if to the Bond Trustee, at U.S. Bank National Association, 225 Water Street, 

Suite 700, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 (Attention: Global Corporate Trust), phone number: 

(904) 358-5363; 

(d)  if to the Underwriter, at Odeon Capital Group LLC, Municipals 

Department, 750 Lexington Avenue, 27th Floor New York, New York 10022, phone 

number: (704) 317-8535; 

(e)  if to the Bondholder Representative, at Hamlin Capital, 640 Fifth Avenue, 

11th Floor, New York, New York 10019, phone number (212) 752-8777; and 



7

(f)  if to the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor, at Hamlin Capital 

Advisors, LLC, 5550 West Executive Drive, Suite 235, Tampa, Florida 33609, phone 

number (813) 280-1002. 

A duplicate copy of each demand, notice, approval, request, consent, opinion or other 

communication given hereunder (i) by either the Issuer or the Bond Trustee to the other 

shall also be given to the Corporation, the Bondholder Representative and the Limited 

Special Purpose Financial Advisor and (ii) to the Bondholder Representative shall also be 

given to the Underwriter.  The Issuer, the Corporation, the Bond Trustee, the Bondholder 

Representative, the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor and the Underwriter may, 

by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which 

subsequent demands, notices, approvals, consents, requests, opinions or other 

communications shall be sent or persons to whose attention the same shall be directed. 

No notices shall be sent to beneficial owners of Hamlin Investor Bonds without 

the consent of the Bondholder Representative, including without limitation, notices of 

failure to comply with covenants and Events of Default. 

Any such communication also may be transmitted to the appropriate party by 

Electronic Means capable of producing a written record and shall be deemed given or 

made at the time of such transmission if, and only if, such transmission of notice shall be 

confirmed in writing sent as specified above. 

Direction to Authenticate.  The Bond Trustee shall authenticate and deliver 

to DTC, in accordance with the DTC “Fast” System, the restated Series 2016 Bonds No. R-4, in the 

form attached to this First Amendment as Exhibit A executed by the Issuer in accordance with 

Section 206 of the Original Indenture. The restated Series 2016 Bond No. R-4 shall be exchanged 

for the Series 2016 Bond Nos. R-1, R-2, and R-3.  Copies of the cancelled Series 2016 Bonds 

stamped or otherwise annotated with “cancelled” on the cover page shall be provided to bond 

counsel, and such cancelled Series 2016 Bonds shall be disposed of pursuant to Section 214 of the 

Original Indenture. 



8

ARTICLE II.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE 

ARRANGEMENT 

Conditions Precedent.  This First Amendment shall be effective if and only if 

the Bond Trustee shall have received, on or prior to the date hereof, the following: 

(a) A certificate of the Issuer regarding the execution, delivery and performance of 

this First Supplemental Indenture;  

(b) A fully executed copy of this First Amendment executed on behalf of the Issuer 

and the Bond Trustee and also executed by and on behalf of the Corporation and by and on behalf 

of the Bondholder Representative which shall reflect and be construed as the consent and 

approval hereof by such parties;  

(c) An Opinion of Bond Counsel as required by Section[s] 1106 [and 1205] of the 

Original Indenture;  

(d) A fully executed and recorded copy of the Mortgage Modification Agreement and 

Notice of Future Advance and the Proforma Endorsements;  

(e) The Internal Revenue Service form 8038 completed by the Issuer with respect to 

the Series 2016 Bonds and a Tax Certificate and Agreement of the Issuer and the Corporation 

dated as of July 15, 2021; and  

(f) An opinion of counsel to the Corporation that the Corporation is an organization 

described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, it has received a letter from the Internal Revenue 

Service to that effect, such letter has not been modified, limited or revoked, it was and is in 

compliance with all terms, conditions, and limitations, if any, contained in such letter applicable 

to it, and it is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code.

Series 2016 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement.  

The Corporation has agreed to maintain not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of all of its 

Outstanding indebtedness secured under the Master Indenture with clients of Hamlin Capital 

Management, LLC and subject to the control of Hamlin Capital Management, LLC as the 

Bondholder Representative. 



9

ARTICLE III.

MISCELLANEOUS 

First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture. All of the provisions 

of this First Amendment shall be deemed to be and construed as part of the Original Indenture 

to the same extent as if fully set forth therein. 

Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further 

Amendment.  Such and except as herein supplemented by this First Amendment, the Original 

Indenture shall remain in full force and effect. 

Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 

same instrument. 

Severability.  If any clause, provision or section of this First Amendment is 

held illegal or invalid by any court, the illegality or invalidity of such clause, provision or section 

shall not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions or sections hereof, and this First 

Amendment shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid clause, provision or 

section has not been contained herein.  In case any agreement or obligation contained in this First 

Amendment is held to be in violation of law, such agreement or obligation shall nevertheless be 

determined to be the agreement or obligation of the Issuer or the Bond Trustee, as the case may 

be, to the fullest extent permitted by law.  

Effective Date.  This First Amendment has been dated as of the date first 

written solely for the purpose of convenience of reference and shall become effective upon its 

execution and delivery by the parties hereto.  



10

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Bond Trustee have caused this First 

Amendment to Bond Indenture to be executed in their respective corporate names as of the date 

first above written. 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

(SEAL) 

By:  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By: _  

Acting City Clerk 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

as Bond Trustee 

By:  

Authorized Officer 

Acknowledged, Consented to and Agreed: 

COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC. 

By:  

Name:  Kenneth H. Schultz  

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer 

Consented to Pursuant to Section 1102 and  

1104 of the Original Indenture:  

HAMLIN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, 

LLC, as the Bondholder Representative

By:  

Name: Joseph Bridy 

Title:  Partner  

j:\wdox\docs\clients\26091\005\misc\01801738.docx



A-1

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF SERIES 2016 REPLACEMENT BOND 



B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

ADDITIONAL EXHIBIT C OF ORIGINAL INDENTURE 

FORM OF DIRECTION REGARDING PURCHASE IN LIEU OF REDEMPTION 

[Date] 

U.S. Bank National Association 
225 Water Street, Suite 700 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 
Attention: Ms. Sheryl Lear 

City of Umatilla, Florida Revenue Bonds 
(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2016 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Reference is made to that certain Bond Trust Indenture relating to the captioned obligations 
(the “Series 2016 Bonds”) dated as of February 1, 2016 (as amended from time to time and in 
particular as amended by the First Amendment thereto dated as of July 1, 2021, the “Indenture”) 
between City of Umatilla, Florida (the “Issuer”) and U.S. Bank National Association (the 
“Trustee”).  The captioned obligations provided funds to make a loan to Community Supports, 
Inc. (the “Corporation”).  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Indenture. 

This letter of direction (the “Direction”) is given by the Corporation pursuant to Section 
304 of the Indenture, with the consent of the Bondholder Representative.  The Bondholder 
Representative has the authority to execute this Direction on behalf of the Bondholders and hereby 
waives any notices required by the Indenture in connection with the purchase in lieu of redemption 
or redemption contemplated by this Direction. 

In accordance with Section 304 of the Indenture, the Corporation and the Bondholder 
Representative desire to cause certain of the Series 2016 Bonds as described below to be purchased 
in lieu of redemption on or before [date].  Specifically, the Corporation, with the consent of the 
Bondholder Representative, intends to (i) [describe purchases and cancellations of the Series 2016 
Bonds and utilization of moneys in the Bond Fund and accounts therein for such purposes].  The 
Corporation and the Bondholder Representative wish to execute the foregoing purchases through 
an account (the “Broker Account”) established by the Corporation for that purpose at [insert name 
of broker dealer] (the “Broker”). 

The Corporation and the Bondholder Representative hereby direct the Trustee to [revise as 
necessary] transfer $_______ from funds on deposit in the Principal Account of the Bond Fund 
and $_______ from funds on deposit in the Interest Account of the Bond Fund to the Broker 
Account, pursuant to wire instructions to be sent to the Trustee, which funds shall be used by the 
Corporation in order to achieve the purchase in lieu of redemption of the Series 2016 Bonds 
described herein.  The Corporation hereby grants a security interest in, lien upon, and pledge of 



B-2 

the Broker Account to the Trustee until the portion of the Series 2016 Bonds referenced above are 
cancelled.  The Corporation agrees that in the event all or any portion of the funds on deposit in 
the Broker Account are not used to purchase and cancel such Series 2016 Bonds on or before 
[date], such funds shall immediately be returned to the Trustee without request from any party.  
The Corporation further agrees to provide a copy of this Direction to the Broker and to cause the 
Broker to provide notice to the Trustee of the purchase of the Series 2016 Bonds promptly 
thereafter and to deliver such Series 2016 Bonds to the Trustee whereupon the Trustee shall cancel 
such Series 2016 Bonds. 

The Corporation and the Bondholder Representative acknowledge that the actions taken 
by the Trustee pursuant to this Direction shall be presumed to constitute actions taken by the 
Trustee in good faith and in accordance with the Indenture.  In accordance with Section 5.3 of the 
Loan Agreement, the Corporation hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee, the 
Bondholder Representative and their agents, employees, directors, officers, controlling persons, 
counsel and advisors (the “Indemnified Parties”), from and against any and all costs, expenses, 
claims, damages or liabilities (including reasonable attorney’s fees, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees incurred in enforcing such indemnification) (the “Losses”) incurred by or asserted 
against the Indemnified Parties relating to or arising in any way from actions taken or not taken by 
the Indemnified Parties in reliance upon and in compliance with the representations, directions and 
instructions of the Corporation pursuant to this Direction (including, without limitation, any claim 
asserted by any Bondholder due to a failure on the part of the Corporation or the Broker to effect 
the transactions contemplated herein); provided, however, that the Indemnified Parties shall not be 
indemnified against Losses finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been 
solely caused by their own gross negligence, willful misconduct, or bad faith in connection with a 
failure to comply with this Direction. 

This Direction shall not be deemed a waiver or the exercise of any other rights or remedies 
granted to the Bondholder Representative, the Holders of the Series 2016 Bonds or the Trustee 
under the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, or any other instrument or document relating to the 
Series 2016 Bonds (the “Bond Documents”), and the Bondholder Representative and the Trustee 
reserve the right to exercise any other right or remedy with respect to any default or Event of 
Default which may exist now or in the future under the Bond Documents. 

By its signature below, the undersigned representative of the Bondholder Representative 
represents and warrants: (i) that it has the full power and authority to execute and deliver this valid, 
and binding obligations of the Bondholder Representative enforceable in accordance with the 
terms of this Direction, and (ii) that it has the full power and authority on behalf of the Bondholders 
to direct the Trustee to take the actions directed herein. 



B-3 

By its signature below, the undersigned representative of the Corporation represents, 
warrants and agrees: (i) that it has the full power and authority to execute and deliver this Direction 
on behalf of the Corporation, (ii) to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the Bondholder 
Representative and the Trustee in connection with preparing and providing the direction contained 
in this Direction, and (iii) to file or caused to be filed a notice on EMMA related to the transactions 
contemplated by this Direction. 

COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC., 
as Corporation 

By:_______________________ 
Name: ____________________ 
Title: _____________________ 

HAMLIN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, 
LLC, as Bondholder Representative 

By: _________________________ 
Name: _______________________ 
Title: _______________________ 

Acknowledged and agreed to: 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as Trustee 

By: _______________________ 
Name: ____________________ 
Title: _____________________ 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE

between 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

and 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

Trustee 

Dated as of July 1, 2021 

AMENDING THE BOND TRUST INDENTURE DATED AS OF DECEMBER 1, 2018  

SECURING THE:  

Up to $11,250,000 

City of Umatilla, Florida 

Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 

(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), 

Series 2018A 

Up to $11,250,000 

City of Umatilla, Florida 

Adjustable Rate Revenue Bonds  

(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), 

Series 2018B 

Up to $5,000,000

City of Umatilla, Florida 

Index Floating Rate Revenue Bonds  

(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), 

Series 2018C 



i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I. AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION ...................................................... 3

Section 101. First Amendment to Constitute Contract ............................................................ 3

Section 102. Construction ............................................................................................................. 3

Section 103. Rules of Construction ............................................................................................. 3

Section 104. Amendments to the Original Indenture .............................................................. 3

ARTICLE II. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER 

REPRESENTATIVE ARRANGEMENT ........................................................................ 7

Section 201. Conditions Precedent .............................................................................................. 7

Section 202. Series 2018 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement .... 7

ARTICLE III. MISCELLANEOUS ............................................................................................................ 8

Section 301. First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture ..................................... 8

Section 302. Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further 

Amendment ........................................................................................................... 8

Section 303. Counterparts ............................................................................................................ 8

Section 304. Severability ............................................................................................................... 8

Section 305. Effective Date ........................................................................................................... 8

EXHIBIT A - Additional Exhibit C to Original Indenture 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND TRUST INDENTURE dated as of July 1, 2021 

(this "First Amendment"), between the CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA (the "Issuer"), a duly 

constituted municipality under the laws of the State of Florida (the "State") and U.S. BANK 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, having a corporate trust office in Jacksonville, Florida, as Bond 

Trustee (in such capacity, together with any successor in such capacity the "Bond Trustee"), 

amends the certain Bond Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2018 between the Issuer and 

the Bond Trustee (the "Original Bond Trust Indenture" and collectively with this First 

Amendment, the "Indenture"). 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized under its home rule powers, under the Constitution 

of the State of Florida, Part II of Chapter 159, Florida Statutes and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 

as supplemented and amended (collectively, the "Act"), to issue bonds and to loan the proceeds 

thereof for the purpose of financing and refinancing "projects" as defined in the Act, to promote 

and develop public health care within the Issuer and the State, to increase the opportunities for 

gainful employment and purchasing power, and improve living conditions and otherwise 

contribute to the health and welfare of the Issuer, the State and the inhabitants thereof; and  

WHEREAS, the Issuer has promoted such purposes by assisting in the acquisition, 

construction, equipping, expansion, enlargement and improvement of facilities for the residence 

or care of the aged in order to provide modern and efficient housing and medical services to the 

inhabitants of the Issuer and care of the aged in accordance with the Act; and 

WHEREAS, in particular the Issuer has assisted in the financing and refinancing of 

projects relating to the residence or care of the aged owned and operated by organizations 

which are exempt from taxation pursuant to §501(c)(3) of the Code in order to reduce the costs 

of residents of the Issuer of utilizing such facilities; and 

WHEREAS, in order to further the purposes of the Act, the Issuer previously issued 

three series of revenue bonds on December 21, 2018 (the "Series 2018 Bonds" or the "Bonds"), 

with one Series having been paid in full, and used the proceeds thereof to make a loan to 

Community Supports, Inc., a not-for-profit corporation (the "Corporation") which currently 

owns and operates the senior living facilities known as Lakeview Terrace Retirement 

Community (herein referred to as "Lakeview Terrace" or the "Facility"), under the terms of a 

Loan Agreement dated as of December 1, 2018 (the "Loan Agreement"), between the Issuer and 

the Corporation; and  

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds were used to finance and refinance 

the construction and equipping of new facilities to be part of Lakeview Terrace Retirement 

Community, consisting collectively of (a) a residential tower building with approximately 

thirty-one (31) independent living units; (b) approximately nine (9) independent living villas 

each containing four (4) residential units; (c) a clubhouse to include new dining facilities, 



2

administrative offices and additional expansion space; (d) common area landscaping; and 

(e) improvements and facilities in support of (a) through (d) above (collectively, the "2018 

Project"); and to additionally finance capitalized interest, working capital, debt service reserve 

funds, and the costs of issuing the Series 2018 Bonds and other eligible expenditures with the 

proceeds; and 

WHEREAS,  the Issuer has been advised by the Corporation, that the Bondholder 

Representative for the Series 2018 Bonds has agreed to undertake an amendment regarding the 

formula used to compute and set the interest rate utilized for the final Advance through the 

draws made by the Corporation of the remaining proceeds of the Series 2018 Bonds in order to 

provide a lower interest rate for such Advance, if any, made after the effective date hereof; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporation has previously drawn proceeds through prior Advances 

from the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds in the amounts of $[9,755,000] and 

$[9,950,000] respectively and therefore has the ability to draw through an Advance the 

remaining amounts of $[895,000] and $1,300,000, respectively (the "Remaining Series 2018 Bonds 

Proceeds"); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer previously entered into the Original Bond Indenture for the 

purpose of authorizing the Series 2018 Bonds and securing the payment thereof and now herein 

agrees to the amendments in this First Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2018 Bonds were issued by the Issuer on December 21, 2018 and 

at least 66 2/3% of the Series 2018 Bonds are still beneficially owned by persons for whom 

Hamlin Capital Management, LLC (the "Bondholder Representative") serves as either an 

investment advisor or as a manager of such owner's limited partnership; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1102 of the Original Bond Indenture provides that the Issuer and 

the Bond Trustee may execute and deliver any supplemental indenture, upon the receipt of 

written consent of the Bondholder Representative; and  

WHEREAS, the Issuer is executing this First Supplemental Indenture at the request of 

the Corporation in order to reduce the rate of interest on the Advance process for the 

Remaining Series 2018 Bond Proceeds as a change to the Series 2018A and 2018B Bonds under 

the Original Bond Indenture;  

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS FIRST AMENDMENT FURTHER WITNESSETH: 

IN TRUST, for the equal and proportionate benefit and security of the holders from 

time to time of the Series 2018 Bonds issued under and secured by the Original Bond Indenture 

as amended by this First Amendment, without privilege, priority or distinction as to the lien or 

otherwise of any of the Series 2018 Bonds over any of the others, except in the case of funds held 

hereunder for the benefit of particular owners of Series 2018 Bonds, and the terms and 



3

provisions of the Original Indenture shall remain in full force and effect, except as hereby 

amended. 

ARTICLE I.

AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION 

The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees with the Bond Trustee and with the respective 

registered owners, from time to time, of the Series 2018 Bonds as follows: 

Section 101. First Amendment to Constitute Contract.  The provisions of this First 

Amendment shall be part of the contract of the Issuer under the Original Indenture with the 

Bondholders, and shall be deemed to be and shall constitute contracts among the Issuer, the 

Trustee and the Bondholders from time to time of the Bonds.  The pledge made by the 

Indenture and the provisions, covenants and agreements herein set forth to be performed by or 

on behalf of the Issuer shall continue to be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the 

Bondholders of any and all of the Bonds except as otherwise provided in Article VIII of the 

Original Indenture or with respect to moneys otherwise held to redeem or pay particular Bonds 

hereunder. 

Section 102. Construction.  The parties hereto acknowledge that each such party and its 

respective counsel have participated in the drafting of this First Amendment.  Accordingly, the 

parties agree that any rule of construction which disfavors the drafting party shall not apply in 

the interpretation of this First Amendment. 

Section 103. Rules of Construction. For all purposes of this First Amendment, the rules 

of construction in Article I of the Original Indenture shall apply. 

Section 104. Amendments to the Original Indenture.  The parties hereby agree that the 

Original Indenture shall be amended as follows: 

(a) The definitions of "Initial Reset Date" and "Financial Advisor" in Section 101 of 

the Original Bond Indenture are hereby deleted in their entirety and replaced with the 

following:  

"Initial Reset Date" shall be January 1, 2029. 

"Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor" means Hamlin Capital Advisors, 

LLC and its successors and assigns. 

(b) Section 202(b) of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by the addition 

of the following paragraph as the final paragraph of such subsection (b) thereof: 

"Notwithstanding anything contained in the immediately preceding paragraph to the 

contrary, the interest rate on the final Subseries of Series 2018A Bonds related to the final 



4

Advance shall be the rate determined by the Underwriter on the third Business Day 

before the date of the final Advance in accordance with this paragraph.  Such final 

Advance, if and when drawn with respect to the remaining Series 2018A Bonds, will 

bear interest at an annual rate either (a) equal to the 30 Year MMD plus 375 basis points 

or (i) 6.125% if higher than such rate, and (ii) 7.55% if lower than such rate or (b) equal to 

the 10 Year MMD plus 350 basis points or (i) 5.25%, if higher than such rate, and (ii) 

6.50% if lower than such rate; provided however that in no event shall the interest rate 

exceed the Highest Lawful Rate." 

(c) Section 203(b) of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby deleted in its entirety and 

the following is hereby substituted for and is a replacement thereof of such Section 203(b): 

"(b) The initial interest rate on the Series 2018B Bonds is an adjustable rate set 

as provided in this Section 203.  The initial interest rate related to the Initial Advance 

from the proceeds of the Series 2018B Bonds is 5.77%.  The interest rate on each Series 

2018B Bond related to any future Advance for a Subsequent Subseries of Series 2018B 

Bonds shall be the rate determined by the Underwriter on the third Business Day before 

the date of the related Advance.  Each Subsequent Subseries of Series 2018B Bonds for an 

Advance other than the final Advance will bear interest at an annual rate equal to the 10 

Year MMD plus 340 basis points or (i) 5.75%, if higher than such rate and (ii) 6.95% if 

lower than such rate; provided, however, that in no event shall the interest rate exceed 

the Highest Lawful Rate.  The Subsequent Subseries of Series 2018B Bonds for the final 

Advance will bear interest at an annual rate equal to the 10 Year MMD plus 340 basis 

points or (i) 5.25%, if higher than such rate and (ii) 6.95% if lower than such rate; 

provided, however, that in no event shall the interest rate exceed the Highest Lawful 

Rate.  For the avoidance of doubt, the floors set forth in clauses (i) and the ceilings set 

forth in clauses (ii) only apply to the Series 2018B Bonds through the first Reset Date." 

(d) Section 304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting such 

section in its entirety and substituting the following as Section 304 thereof:  

"The Corporation shall have the option as set forth in this Section 304 to cause the Series 

2018 Bonds to be purchased in lieu of redemption pursuant to this Article III.  Such option may 

be exercised by delivery to the Bond Trustee at least three (3) Business Days prior to the 

redemption date of a written notice of the Corporation, with the written consent of the 

Bondholder Representative, specifying that the Series 2018 Bonds shall not be redeemed, but 

instead shall be subject to purchase pursuant to this Section 304.  Upon delivery of such notice, 

the Series 2018 Bonds shall not be redeemed but shall instead be subject to mandatory tender at 

the Purchase Price (as defined below) on the date that would have been the redemption date.  

Any payment for Series 2018 Bonds purchased in lieu of redemption shall be credited as 

provided below in the penultimate paragraph of this Section.  For purposes of this Section 304, 

“Purchase Price” shall mean the price negotiated with the Bondholder Representative or the 

Bondholder if not represented by a Bondholder Representative in connection with delivery of 

the Bondholder Representative’s consent. 



5

Subject in all cases to operational or other restrictions or requirements of DTC, if so 

directed, the Bond Trustee shall purchase (solely with funds provided by the Corporation or on 

deposit with the Bond Trustee for the redemption of such Series 2018 Bonds) such Series 2018 

Bonds on the date which otherwise would be the redemption date of such Series 2018 Bonds.  

Any of the Series 2018 Bonds called for redemption that are not purchased in lieu of redemption 

shall be redeemed as otherwise required by this Indenture on such redemption date. 

Subject in all cases to any operational or other restrictions or requirements of DTC, on or 

prior to the scheduled redemption date, any direction given to the Bond Trustee may be 

withdrawn by the Corporation by written notice to the Bond Trustee.  Should a direction to 

purchase be withdrawn, the scheduled redemption of such Series 2018 Bonds shall occur. 

The purchase shall be made for the account of the Corporation or its designee. 

No notice of the purchase in lieu of redemption shall be required to be given to the 

Bondholders (other than the notice of redemption otherwise required for such Series 2018 

Bond). 

Purchase in lieu of redemption shall be available with respect to Series 2018 Bonds at the 

Purchase Price as may be agreed upon by the Corporation and the Bondholder Representative.  

In order to effect such purchase in lieu of redemption, the Corporation and the Bondholder 

Representative shall deliver to the Bond Trustee a form of direction as provided in Exhibit C 

hereto; and the Bond Trustee is hereby authorized to comply with such direction.  In such 

instance all Series 2018 Bonds so purchased shall be cancelled and the principal amount of such 

Series 2018 Bonds shall be credited against the final sinking fund payments due or with respect 

thereto or against the maturities, in inverse order, unless otherwise directed by the Bondholder 

Representative. 

To pay the Purchase Price of such Series 2018 Bonds, the Bond Trustee shall use (A) 

funds deposited by the Corporation with the Bond Trustee for such purpose and (B) funds, if 

any, held under this Indenture that the Bond Trustee would have used to pay the outstanding 

principal of, interest on and the redemption premium, if any, that would have been payable on 

the redemption of such Series 2018 Bonds on the scheduled redemption date.  The Bond Trustee 

shall not purchase the Series 2018 Bonds pursuant to the above provisions if by no later than the 

redemption date, sufficient moneys have not been deposited with the Bond Trustee, or such 

moneys are deposited but are not available for such purpose." 

(d) Section 701 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by adding the 

following paragraph (m) thereto: 

"(m) a brokerage account to be invested solely in the Series 2018 Bonds to be 

purchased in lieu of redemption in accordance with the form of direction provided 

pursuant to Section 304 hereto." 



6

(e) Section 1304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting the 

section in its entirety and substituting the following therefor: 

Unless otherwise provided herein, all demands, notices approvals, consents 

requests, opinions and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed to have been given when delivered in person or mailed by first class mail, 

postage prepaid, addressed:  

(a) if to the Corporation, at Community Supports, Inc., c/o DSI Management, 

1890 State Road 436, Suite 300, Winter Park, Florida 32792 (Attention: Chief Executive 

Officer), phone number: (407) 645-3211;  

(b)  if to the Issuer, at 1 South Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784 

(Attention:  City Manager), phone number: (352) 669-3125;  

(c)  if to the Bond Trustee, at U.S. Bank National Association, 225 Water 

Street, Suite 700, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 (Attention: Global Corporate Trust), phone 

number: (904) 358-5363; 

(d)  if to the Underwriter, at Odeon Capital Group LLC, Municipals 

Department, 750 Lexington Avenue, 27th Floor New York, New York 10022, phone 

number: (704) 317-8535; 

(e)  if to the Bondholder Representative, at Hamlin Capital, 640 Fifth Avenue, 

11th Floor, New York, New York 10019, phone number (212) 752-8777; and 

(f)  if to the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor, at Hamlin Capital 

Advisors, LLC, 5550 West Executive Drive, Suite 235, Tampa, Florida 33609, phone 

number (813) 280-1002. 

A duplicate copy of each demand, notice, approval, request, consent, opinion or 

other communication given hereunder (i) by either the Issuer or the Bond Trustee to the 

other shall also be given to the Corporation, the Bondholder Representative and the 

Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor and (ii) to the Bondholder Representative 

shall also be given to the Underwriter.  The Issuer, the Corporation, the Bond Trustee, 

the Bondholder Representative, the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor and the 

Underwriter may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different 

addresses to which subsequent demands, notices, approvals, consents, requests, 

opinions or other communications shall be sent or persons to whose attention the same 

shall be directed. 

No notices shall be sent to beneficial owners of Hamlin Investor Bonds without 

the consent of the Bondholder Representative, including without limitation, notices of 

failure to comply with covenants and Events of Default.  



7

Any such communication also may be transmitted to the appropriate party by 

Electronic Means capable of producing a written record and shall be deemed given or 

made at the time of such transmission if, and only if, such transmission of notice shall be 

confirmed in writing sent as specified above.  

ARTICLE II.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE 

ARRANGEMENT 

Section 201. Conditions Precedent.  This First Amendment shall be effective if and only 

if the Bond Trustee shall have received, on or prior to the date hereof, the following: 

(a) A certificate of the Issuer regarding the execution, delivery and performance of 

this First Supplemental Indenture;  

(b) A fully executed copy of this First Amendment executed on behalf of the Issuer 

and the Bond Trustee and also executed by and on behalf of the Corporation and by and on 

behalf of the Bondholder Representative which shall reflect and be construed as the consent and 

approval hereof by such parties;  

(c) An Opinion of Bond Counsel as required by Section[s] 1106 and [1205] of the 

Original Indenture;  

(d) A fully executed and recorded copy of the Mortgage Modification Agreement 

and Notice of Future Advance and the Proforma Endorsements;  

(e) [A Tax Certificate and Agreement of the Issuer and the Corporation dated as of 

July 15, 2021]; and  

(f) [An opinion of counsel to the Corporation that the Corporation is an 

organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, it has received a letter from the 

Internal Revenue Service to that effect, such letter has not been modified, limited or revoked, 

it was and is in compliance with all terms, conditions, and limitations, if any, contained in 

such letter applicable to it, and it is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 

501(a) of the Code.] 

Section 202. Series 2018 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement.  

The Corporation has agreed to maintain not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of all of its 

Outstanding indebtedness secured under the Master Indenture with clients of Hamlin Capital 

Management, LLC and subject to the control of Hamlin Capital Management, LLC as the 

Bondholder Representative. 



8

ARTICLE III.

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 301. First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture. All of the 

provisions of this First Amendment shall be deemed to be and construed as part of the Original 

Indenture to the same extent as if fully set forth therein. 

Section 302. Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further 

Amendment.  Such and except as herein supplemented by this First Amendment, the Original 

Indenture shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 303. Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 

same instrument. 

Section 304. Severability.  If any clause, provision or section of this First Amendment is 

held illegal or invalid by any court, the illegality or invalidity of such clause, provision or 

section shall not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions or sections hereof, and this First 

Amendment shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid clause, provision or 

section has not been contained herein.  In case any agreement or obligation contained in this 

First Amendment is held to be in violation of law, such agreement or obligation shall 

nevertheless be determined to be the agreement or obligation of the Issuer or the Bond Trustee, 

as the case may be, to the fullest extent permitted by law.  

Section 305. Effective Date.  This First Amendment has been dated as of the date first 

written solely for the purpose of convenience of reference and shall become effective upon its 

execution and delivery by the parties hereto.  



9

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Bond Trustee have caused this First 

Amendment to Bond Indenture to be executed in their respective corporate names as of the date 

first above written. 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

(SEAL) 

By:  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By: _  

Acting City Clerk 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

as Bond Trustee 

By:  

Authorized Officer 

Acknowledged, Consented to and Agreed: 

COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC. 

By:  

Name:  Kenneth H. Schultz  

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer 

Consented to Pursuant to Section 1102 of  

the Original Indenture:  

HAMLIN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, 

LLC, as the Bondholder Representative

By:  

Name: Joseph Bridy 

Title:  Partner  

j:\wdox\docs\clients\26091\005\closing\01802944.doc



A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

ADDITIONAL EXHIBIT C OF ORIGINAL INDENTURE 

FORM OF DIRECTION REGARDING PURCHASE IN LIEU OF REDEMPTION 

[Date] 

U.S. Bank National Association 

225 Water Street, Suite 700 

Jacksonville, FL 32202 

Attention: Ms. Sheryl Lear 

Up to $11,250,000

City of Umatilla, Florida 

Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 

(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), 

Series 2018A 

Up to $11,250,000

City of Umatilla, Florida 

Adjustable Rate Revenue Bonds  

(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), 

Series 2018B 

Up to $5,000,000

City of Umatilla, Florida 

Index Floating Rate Revenue Bonds  

(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), 

Series 2018C 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Reference is made to that certain Bond Trust Indenture relating to the captioned 

obligations (the “Series 2018 Bonds”) dated as of December 1, 2018 (as amended from time to 

time and in particular as amended by the First Amendment thereto dated as of July 1, 2021, the 

“Indenture”) between City of Umatilla, Florida (the “Issuer”) and U.S. Bank National 

Association (the “Trustee”).  The captioned obligations provided funds to make a loan to 

Community Supports, Inc. (the “Corporation”).  Capitalized terms used herein and not 

otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Indenture. 

This letter of direction (the “Direction”) is given by the Corporation pursuant to Section 

304 of the Indenture, with the consent of the Bondholder Representative.  The Bondholder 

Representative has the authority to execute this Direction on behalf of the Bondholders and 

hereby waives any notices required by the Indenture in connection with the purchase in lieu of 

redemption or redemption contemplated by this Direction. 

In accordance with Section 304 of the Indenture, the Corporation and the Bondholder 

Representative desire to cause certain of the Series 2018 Bonds as described below to be 

purchased in lieu of redemption on or before [date].  Specifically, the Corporation, with the 

consent of the Bondholder Representative, intends to (i) [describe purchases and cancellations of the 



A-2 

Series 2018 Bonds and utilization of moneys in the Bond Fund and accounts therein for such purposes].  

The Corporation and the Bondholder Representative wish to execute the foregoing purchases 

through an account (the “Broker Account”) established by the Corporation for that purpose at 

[insert name of broker dealer] (the “Broker”). 

The Corporation and the Bondholder Representative hereby direct the Trustee to [revise 

as necessary] transfer $_______ from funds on deposit in the Principal Account of the Bond Fund 

and $_______ from funds on deposit in the Interest Account of the Bond Fund to the Broker 

Account, pursuant to wire instructions to be sent to the Trustee, which funds shall be used by 

the Corporation in order to achieve the purchase in lieu of redemption of the Series 2018 Bonds 

described herein.  The Corporation hereby grants a security interest in, lien upon, and pledge of 

the Broker Account to the Trustee until the portion of the Series 2018 Bonds referenced above 

are cancelled.  The Corporation agrees that in the event all or any portion of the funds on 

deposit in the Broker Account are not used to purchase and cancel such Series 2018 Bonds on or 

before [date], such funds shall immediately be returned to the Trustee without request from any 

party.  The Corporation further agrees to provide a copy of this Direction to the Broker and to 

cause the Broker to provide notice to the Trustee of the purchase of the Series 2018 Bonds 

promptly thereafter and to deliver such Series 2018 Bonds to the Trustee whereupon the Trustee 

shall cancel such Series 2018 Bonds. 

The Corporation and the Bondholder Representative acknowledge that the actions taken 

by the Trustee pursuant to this Direction shall be presumed to constitute actions taken by the 

Trustee in good faith and in accordance with the Indenture.  In accordance with Section 5.3 of 

the Loan Agreement, the Corporation hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 

Trustee, the Bondholder Representative and their agents, employees, directors, officers, 

controlling persons, counsel and advisors (the “Indemnified Parties”), from and against any and 

all costs, expenses, claims, damages or liabilities (including reasonable attorney’s fees, including 

reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in enforcing such indemnification) (the “Losses”) incurred 

by or asserted against the Indemnified Parties relating to or arising in any way from actions 

taken or not taken by the Indemnified Parties in reliance upon and in compliance with the 

representations, directions and instructions of the Corporation pursuant to this Direction 

(including, without limitation, any claim asserted by any Bondholder due to a failure on the 

part of the Corporation or the Broker to effect the transactions contemplated herein); provided, 

however, that the Indemnified Parties shall not be indemnified against Losses finally adjudicated 

by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been solely caused by their own gross negligence, 

willful misconduct, or bad faith in connection with a failure to comply with this Direction. 

This Direction shall not be deemed a waiver or the exercise of any other rights or 

remedies granted to the Bondholder Representative, the Holders of the Series 2018 Bonds or the 

Trustee under the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, or any other instrument or document 

relating to the Series 2018 Bonds (the “Bond Documents”), and the Bondholder Representative 

and the Trustee reserve the right to exercise any other right or remedy with respect to any 

default or Event of Default which may exist now or in the future under the Bond Documents. 



A-3 

By its signature below, the undersigned representative of the Bondholder Representative 

represents and warrants: (i) that it has the full power and authority to execute and deliver this 

valid, and binding obligations of the Bondholder Representative enforceable in accordance with 

the terms of this Direction, and (ii) that it has the full power and authority on behalf of the 

Bondholders to direct the Trustee to take the actions directed herein. 

By its signature below, the undersigned representative of the Corporation represents, 

warrants and agrees: (i) that it has the full power and authority to execute and deliver this 

Direction on behalf of the Corporation, (ii) to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the 

Bondholder Representative and the Trustee in connection with preparing and providing the 

direction contained in this Direction, and (iii) to file or caused to be filed a notice on EMMA 

related to the transactions contemplated by this Direction. 

COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC., 

as Corporation 

By:_______________________ 

Name: ____________________ 

Title: _____________________ 

HAMLIN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, 

LLC, as Bondholder Representative 

By: _________________________ 

Name: _______________________ 

Title: _______________________ 

Acknowledged and agreed to: 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 

as Trustee 

By: _______________________ 

Name: ____________________ 

Title: _____________________ 



 
 

 

 

 EXHIBIT B TO THE AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 

 

 INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT 



INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

This INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") 

dated as of this 1st day of July, 2021, between COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC., a not-for-profit 

corporation (the "Corporation") and CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA (the "Issuer"). 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has been requested by the Corporation to restructure the (i) City 

of Umatilla, Florida Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2012A 

(Fixed Rate Bonds) and the City of Umatilla, Florida Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior 

Living Project), Series 2012B (Adjustable Rate Bonds) (collectively, the "Series 2012 Bonds"); 

(ii) City of Umatilla, Florida Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 

2016 (the "Series 2016 Bonds"); and (iii) City of Umatilla, Florida Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 

(Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2018A, City of Umatilla, Florida Adjustable 

Rate Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), Series 2018B, and City of 

Umatilla, Florida Index Floating Rate Revenue Bonds (Lakeview Terrace Senior Living Project), 

Series 2018C (collectively, the "Series 2018 Bonds" together with the Series 2012 Bonds and the 

Series 2016 Bonds the "Bonds"), through the (a) First Amendment to Bond Trust Indenture (the 

"2012 First Amendment") dated as of July 1, 2021 amending the Bond Trust Indenture, dated as 

of December 1, 2012 (the "2012 Bond Indenture") between the Issuer and U.S. Bank National 

Association (the "Bond Trustee"); (b) First Amendment to Bond Trust Indenture (the "2016 First 

Amendment") dated as of July 1, 2021 amending the Bond Trust Indenture, dated as of 

February 1, 2016 (the "2016 Bond Indenture") between the Issuer and the Bond Trustee; and (c) 

First Amendment to Bond Trust Indenture (the "2018 First Amendment" together with the 2012 

First Amendment and the 2016 First Amendment the "First Amendments") dated as of 

July 1, 2021 amending the Bond Trust Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2018 (the "2018 Bond 

Indenture" together with the 2012 Bond Indenture, and the 2016 Bond Indenture the "Original 

Bond Indentures");and 

WHEREAS, as a condition to its approval to amend certain terms in order to restructure 

the Bonds through the Issuer's execution of replacement bonds to be exchanged for the Bonds, 

and the First Amendments, the Issuer is requiring that the Corporation enter into this 

Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises hereof and for other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 

parties hereto agree as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Definitions.  All terms used herein in capitalized form and not otherwise 

defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Original Bond Indentures or the 

First Amendments. 

SECTION 2.  Indemnity.  The Corporation will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 

protect, indemnify and save the Issuer and their officers, agents, employees and any person 

who controls the Issuer within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Indemnified 



2 

Persons"), harmless from and against all liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses (including 

attorneys' fees and expenses of the Indemnified Persons), causes of action, suits, claims, 

demands, audits, investigations and judgments of any nature arising from the transactions 

contemplated by this Agreement, the Original Bond Indentures, the First Amendments, the 

replacement Bonds and the other Financing Instruments including but not limited to: 

(a) any injury to or death of any person or damage to property in or upon the 2012 

Project or its premises or growing out of or connected with the use, non-use, condition or 

occupancy of the premises or any other location of the 2012 Project or any part thereof.  The 

foregoing indemnification obligations shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the 

amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Corporation, 

customers, suppliers or affiliated organizations under any Workers' Compensation Acts, 

Disability Benefit Acts or other employee benefit acts; 

(b) violation of any agreement, provision or condition of the Indenture or any of the 

other Financing Instruments, except by the Issuer; 

(c) violation of any contract, agreement or restriction applicable to the Corporation 

which shall have existed at the commencement of the term of the Indenture or shall have been 

approved by the Corporation; 

(d) violation of any law, ordinance, court order or regulation affecting the 2012 

Project, or a part thereof or the ownership, occupancy or use thereof; 

(e) any audit or action by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the tax-

exempt status of the Bonds or any other related tax matters; and 

(f) any statement or information relating to the expenditure of the proceeds of the 

Bonds contained in the Tax Certificate and Agreement or similar document furnished by the 

Corporation which, at the time made, is misleading, untrue or incorrect in any material respect. 

Promptly after receipt by an Indemnified Party of notice of any claims or action in 

respect of which indemnity may be sought against the Corporation pursuant hereto, such party 

will notify the Corporation in writing (at the notice address provided for by the Indenture) of 

such action and, subject to the terms hereof, the Corporation shall assume the defense of such 

claim or action (including the employment of such counsel who shall be satisfactory to the 

Indemnified Party and the payment of the fees and expense related thereto).  The Indemnified 

Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such claim or action and to 

participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall not be at the 

expense of the Corporation unless the Indemnified Party reasonably determines that the 

employment of such separate counsel is necessary to protect its interests or to raise defenses not 

available to the Corporation.  The Corporation shall not be liable to indemnify any person for 

any settlement of any such action effected without its consent.  The Corporation shall not be 

required to indemnify the Issuer for any damages, losses, causes of action, lawsuits, or claims 



3 

which are caused directly and solely by the gross negligence, willful misconduct, or fraudulent 

acts of the Issuer. 

The failure to give such notice in sufficient time shall not constitute a defense hereunder 

nor in any way impair the obligations of the Corporation under this Section 2, if (i) the party 

seeking indemnification shall not have had knowledge or notice of such claim or action, or (ii) 

the Corporation's ability to defend such claim or action shall not thereby be materially 

impaired.  In the event, however, that (x) the party seeking indemnification shall not have 

notified the Corporation promptly of any such claim or action after such party's receipt of notice 

thereof, and (y) the Corporation's ability to defend or participate in such claim or action is 

materially impaired by reason of not having received timely notice thereof from the party 

seeking indemnity, then the Corporation's obligation to so defend and indemnify shall be 

qualified to the extent (and only to the extent) of such material impairment. 

SECTION 3.  Reserved. 

SECTION 4.  Fees, Costs and Survival of Obligation.  The Corporation agrees to 

indemnify the Indemnified Party for any costs, expenses, and reasonable attorneys’ and 

paralegals’ fees and expenses incurred in enforcing this Agreement against the Corporation. 

The obligation of the Corporation to indemnify and defend the Issuer hereunder shall be 

enforceable notwithstanding the invalidity or unenforceability of the Bonds, the Indenture or 

any documents related thereto.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this 

Agreement, the Original Bond Trust Indentures, the First Amendments, or the other Financing 

Instruments (collectively, the "Loan Documents"), Corporation shall not be liable to indemnify 

Issuer following the payment of all obligations under the Loan Documents in full. 

SECTION 5.  Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Consent to Service of Process. 

(a) This Agreement and any claim, controversy, dispute or cause of action 

(whether in contract or tort or otherwise) based upon, arising out of or relating to this 

Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and be governed by the law (without 

giving effect to the conflict of law principles thereof) of the State of Florida. 

(b) The Corporation hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits itself to 

the exclusive jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Middle District of 

Florida and of the Circuit Court of the Fifth Judicial Circuit located in Lake County, 

Florida, and of any appellate court from any thereof, in any action or proceeding arising 

out of or relating to this Agreement, and each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably 

and unconditionally agrees that all claims in respect of any such action or proceeding 

may be heard and determined in such District Court, or Circuit Court or, to the extent 

permitted by applicable law, such appellate court.  Each of the parties hereto agrees that 

a final judgment in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be 

enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided 

by law.  Nothing in this Agreement shall affect any right that the Issuer may otherwise 



4 

have to bring any action or proceeding relating to this Agreement in the courts of any 

jurisdiction. 

(c) The Corporation irrevocably and unconditionally waives any objection 

which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any such suit, action or 

proceeding described in subsection (b) of this Section and brought in any court referred 

to in subsection (b) of this Section.  Each of the parties hereto irrevocably waives, to the 

fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the defense of an inconvenient forum to the 

maintenance of such action or proceeding in any such court. 

SECTION 6.  Waiver of Jury Trial.  EACH PARTY HERETO IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, 

TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE 

TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING 

OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER 

THEORY).  EACH PARTY HERETO (A) CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT 

OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR 

OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, 

SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER, AND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND 

THE OTHER PARTY HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT 

BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS 

SECTION. 

SECTION 7.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of Florida. 

SECTION 8.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed by one or more of the 

parties to this Agreement on any number of separate counterparts, and all of said counterparts 

taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

SECTION 9.  Severability.  Any provision of this Agreement held to be illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable in any jurisdiction, shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of 

such illegality, invalidity or unenforceability without affecting the legality, validity or 

enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof; and the illegality, invalidity or 

unenforceability of a particular provision in a particular jurisdiction shall not invalidate or 

render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank | Signature Page Follows.] 



S-1 

Dated as of the date first written above. 

COMMUNITY SUPPORTS, INC. 

By: 

Name:  Kenneth H. Schultz 

Title:     President and Chief Executive Officer 

[Signature Page to Indemnification and Hold Harmless] 



S-2 

CITY OF UMATILLA, FLORIDA 

[SEAL]

By: 

Name: Kent Adcock 

Title: Mayor 

ATTEST:  

By:  

Name: Gwen Johns 

Title:    Acting City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:  

Name: Kevin Stone 

Title: City Attorney 

[Signature Page to Indemnification and Hold Harmless] 



1 

CITY OF UMATILLA 
AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  June 30, 2021  MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Opioid Litigation  

ISSUE: Approval of Resolution No. 2021-14 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:  Recognizing the entire State of Florida, as well as the City of 
Umatilla as suffered harm from the opioid epidemic, Resolution No. 2021-14 has been 
prepared for approval by City Council.  The City will join the State of Florida and other local 
government jurisdictions as a participant in the Florida Memorandum of Understanding and 
Formal Agreements implementing a unified plan regarding opioid litigation. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  

FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

COUNCIL ACTION:   

Reviewed by City Attorney   □Yes □No √N/A

Reviewed by City Engineer    □Yes □No √N/A



 
 

RESOLUTION 2021 - 14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UMATILLA, FLORIDA; AUTHORIZING CITY TO JOIN WITH THE 
STATE OF FLORIDA AND OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL UNITS 
AS A PARTICIPANT IN THE FLORIDA MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING AND FORMAL AGREEMENTS IMPLEMENTING A 
UNIFIED PLAN REGARDING OPIOID LITIGATION; PROVIDING FOR 
RECORDATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Umatilla, Florida has suffered harm from the opioid epidemic; 
and  

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that the entire State of Florida has suffered harm as a 
result of the opioid epidemic; and  

WHEREAS, the State of Florida has filed an action pending in Pasco County, Florida, and 
a number of Florida cities and counties have also filed an action In re: National Prescription 
Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804 (N.D. Ohio) (the “Opioid Litigation”) and the City of Umatilla, 
Florida is not a litigating participant in that action; and  

WHEREAS, the State of Florida and lawyers representing certain various local 
governments involved in the Opioid Litigation have proposed a unified plan for the allocation and 
use of prospective settlement dollars from opioid related litigation; and 

WHEREAS, the Florida Memorandum of Understanding (the “Florida Plan”) sets forth a 
framework of a unified plan for the proposed allocation and use of settlement proceeds and it is 
anticipated that formal agreements implementing the Florida Plan will be entered into at a future 
date; and  

WHEREAS, participation in the Florida Plan by a large majority of Florida cities and 
counties will materially increase the amount of funds to Florida and should improve Florida’s 
relative bargaining position during additional settlement negotiations; and  

WHEREAS, failure to participate in the Florida Plan will reduce funds available to the 
State, the City of Umatilla, and every other Florida city and county. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Umatilla, 
Florida: 

Section 1. The above going recitals are incorporated herein. 
Section 2. The City Council of the City of Umatilla finds that participation in the 

Florida Plan would be in the best interest of the City of Umatilla and its citizens in that such a plan 
ensures that almost all of the settlement funds go to abate and resolve the opioid epidemic and 
each and every city and county receives funds for the harm it has suffered.  

Section 3.  The City Council of the City of Umatilla hereby expresses its support of a 
unified plan for the allocation and use of opioid settlement proceeds as generally described in the 
Florida Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  

Section 4.  The City Manager of the City of Umatilla is expressly authorized to execute 
the Florida Plan in substantially the form contained in Exhibit “A”.  



 
 

Section 5.  The City Manager of the City of Umatilla is authorized to execute any 
formal agreements implementing a unified plan for the allocation and use of opioid settlement 
proceeds that is not substantially inconsistent with the Florida Plan and this Resolution 2021- 14. 

Section 6.  The City Clerk is instructed to record this Resolution 2021-14 in the official 
records of Lake County, Florida.  

Section 7.  The City Clerk is directed to furnish a certified copy of this Resolution 
2021- 14 to the Florida Attorney General:  

Attorney General Ashley Moody 
c/o John M. Guard 
The Capitol  
PL-01 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050 
 
Section 8.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 

 
 
 PASSED and RESOLVED this    6TH    day of     JULY   , 2021 by the City Council of 
the City of Umatilla 
 
 
            
      Kent Adcock, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Gwen Johns, Acting City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Kevin Stone, City Attorney 
 











































1  
 

 
CITY OF UMATILLA 

AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 
 

 
DATE:  June 30, 2021     MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  Residential Lease Agreement at 410  N. Kentucky Avenue  
 
ISSUE: Approval of Lease Agreement 
 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY:  At their regularly scheduled meeting on June 1, 2021, the City of 
Umatilla City Council approved Resolution No. 2021-10, authorizing purchase of real property 
located at 410 N. Kentucky Avenue.   
 
The residential lease agreement has been prepared to address post-closing occupancy for the 
residential unit located at 410 N. Kentucky Avenue.  Mr. O’Brien continues to occupy the 
premises and bear expenses associated with the property for up to two years following closing.  
All parties have reviewed the Residential Lease Agreement and amendments requested by the 
other party have been incorporated into the agreement. 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  N/A 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COUNCIL ACTION:   
 
Reviewed by City Attorney    □Yes  □No  √N/A 
 
Reviewed by City Engineer     □Yes  □No  √N/A 



RESIDENTIAL LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
  THIS RESIDENTIAL LEASE AGREEMENT (the “Lease”) is made this ____ day 
of ______________, 2021, between City of Umatilla, with an address of 1 South Central Avenue, 
Umatilla, Florida 32784 ("Landlord"), and Jason O’Brien with an address of 410 N. Kentucky 
Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784 (hereinafter referred to as "Tenant"). 
 

1. Lease of residential premises.  Landlord hereby leases to Tenant for 
residential purposes the real property described as follows:  410 N. Kentucky Avenue, Umatilla, 
Florida 32784, Alt. Key No. 1500737.  (Said real property being leased by Tenant is hereinafter 
referred to as the “Leased Premises” or “Premises”).  Landlord shall retain the right to use and 
access the adjacent real property located south of 410 N. Kentucky Avenue, Umatilla, Florida and 
separated by right-of-way. Landlord may allow temporary uses of said adjacent property by Tenant 
from time to time, so long as no improvements are built or placed on the property and so long as 
Landlord’s right to access and use the adjacent property is not disturbed by Tenant’s temporary 
use. No other adult persons have authorization to reside in the Leased Premises without express 
written approval from Landlord, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any person 
granted authorization by Landlord to reside in the Leased Premises pursuant to this paragraph shall 
abide by and be bound to the terms of this Lease.  Any person who visits, resides in, stays or 
otherwise occupies the Leased Premises more than fourteen (14) consecutive or nonconsecutive 
days in any calendar year will be deemed to be residing in the Leased Premises for purposes of 
this provision. 
   
  2. Term.  The term of the tenancy under this Lease shall be for a period of 270 
days, beginning on the ____ day of _____________, 2021, and terminating on the ____ day of 
______________, 2023, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time, unless sooner terminated as provided 
in this lease.   
 
  3. Rent.  Landlord purchased the Premises from Tenant in a transaction that 
closed on the effective date hereof. Landlord received adequate consideration for Tenant’s post-
closing tenancy as a part of that purchase and sale transaction. Therefore, provided Tenant is not 
in default under the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease, Tenant shall have the right to 
use and occupy the Leased Premises without payment of additional rent for the Term of the Lease.  
 

4. Condition of Leased Premises.  The Tenant is accepting the Leased 
Premises “AS IS”.  The taking of possession of the Leased Premises by Tenant will constitute the 
Tenant’s acceptance that the Leased Premises and all equipment and fixtures are clean, sanitary, 
in good working order and condition, and that there are no conditions which would materially 
affect the health or safety of household members.  The Tenant agrees to use reasonable care to 
keep the Leased Premises in good, clean, safe, and sanitary order and condition throughout the 
term of this lease.  Trash must be placed in plastic bags and must be deposited into the receptacles 
provided for trash disposal. 
 

5. Alterations or improvements.  The Tenant shall make no alterations or 
improvements to the Leased Premises without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent 
shall lie within the sole discretion of Landlord.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 



the Tenant will make no alterations or repairs, including but not limited to painting, wall or window 
covering, wallpaper, flooring, additional phone or TV outlets or antennas (including satellite TV 
dishes) without the Landlord’s prior written consent.  Any alterations or additions which may be 
approved by Landlord shall be at Tenants’ sole expense.  Any additions, such as, hardware, 
fixtures, and/or improvements placed in the Leased Premises by Tenant will become the 
Landlord’s property and will remain in the Leased Premises at termination of the Lease.   
 

6. Assignment by Tenant.   Tenant shall not assign or sublet the Lease or the 
Leased Premises without Landlord's prior written consent, which consent shall lie within the sole 
discretion of Landlord. 
 

7. Utilities and services.  Tenant shall pay for all utilities furnished to the 
Leased Premises for the term of this Lease --including, but not limited to, electrical, water, sewer, 
telephone, and garbage and trash collection service.  Upon execution of this Lease, Tenant shall 
make immediate arrangements to place the accounts for all such utilities and services into the name 
of Tenant, and the failure to do so shall be a material noncompliance with this Agreement.  Tenant 
shall also ensure that no liens or other charges are assessed against the Leased Premises due to the 
failure of Tenant to pay any sums owed to utility services and shall reimburse Landlord for all 
costs associated with satisfying the outstanding sums owed. 
 

8. Security deposit.  Tenant is not required to provide Landlord with any 
security deposit in connection with this Lease. 

 
9. Use, maintenance, and repair of premises.  Tenant shall commit no act of 

waste and shall take good care of the premises and the fixtures, appliances and appurtenances 
located therein, and shall, in the use and occupancy of the premises, conform to all laws, orders 
and regulations of the federal, state and municipal governments that may be applicable to the 
Premises.  Smoking is not permitted inside of the residence at the Leased Premises.  Tenant shall 
use the Leased Premises as a private residential dwelling, shall engage in no unlawful or offensive 
use of the property, and shall not engage in any commercial or business activity from the Leased 
Premises except as may be allowed under the Code of Ordinances of the City of Umatilla and any 
other applicable law. The Tenant may conduct incidental business activities from the Leased 
Premises over the telephone and through facsimile transmissions, as long as: (a) said activities at 
all times comply with all governmental regulations for the use of the property, including 
regulations imposed by the City of Umatilla, which shall prevail over any inconsistent provisions 
in this Lease, (b) no actual or prospective customers or clients of the Tenant shall come to the 
Leased Premises at any time, and (c) the Tenant shall not have any employees, agents or 
independent contractors of any business of Tenant at the Leased Premises. 
   
   Tenant shall not use or keep in the Leased Premises anything which would 
in any way affect the terms and conditions of a standard fire insurance policy or increase the 
premium for standard fire insurance coverage for the Leased Premises.  Tenant shall not at any 
time engage in any conduct or commit any act that causes a disturbance or interferes with the rights 
of quiet and peaceful enjoyment of neighbors.   
 



   Tenant shall maintain the lawn in accordance with applicable City of 
Umatilla code requirements by mowing and maintaining same and shall maintain the landscaping 
plants and other vegetation located on or about the Leased Premises. 
 
   Tenant shall maintain the Leased Premises in good condition and repair, 
and shall deliver all of the leased premises to Landlord at the conclusion of this lease in the same 
condition and repair in which they were found at the beginning of this Lease, ordinary wear and 
tear excepted.  Tenant also shall be responsible for the cost of all repair to and maintenance of the 
Leased Premises, and to all equipment, fixtures and appliances in the Leased Premises, that shall 
be required as a result of a willful act, a negligent act, misuse, or abuse on the part of Tenant or 
Tenant's agents, guests, invitees, or licensees.  Upon demand by Landlord, the Tenant promptly 
shall pay Landlord the cost of any such service or repair for which Tenant is responsible. 
 
   Landlord does not provide pest control for the Leased Premises.  Tenant 
shall be responsible for providing any desired pest control services at Tenant’s sole expense. 
Tenant shall maintain, repair, and replace, in a prompt manner as said repairs or replacements 
become necessary, the structural components of the Leased Premises, the roof, exterior windows, 
exterior doors, walls, floors, ceilings, plumbing, electrical service, HVAC system, and appliances 
furnished as part of the Leased Premises. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if repairs or replacements 
described in the previous paragraphs become necessary, the Tenant may terminate the tenancy 
hereunder, restore possession of the Premises to the Landlord, and be relieved of any obligation 
relating to such repair or replacements. 
 

10. Access to premises.  Throughout the term of this Lease, Landlord or 
Landlord's agent shall have the right to enter and inspect the Leased Premises for compliance by 
Tenant with the terms of this Lease agreement in accordance with and pursuant to Landlord’s 
rights under Chapter 83, Florida Statutes, as may be amended from time to time, and other 
applicable law. However, in the event of an emergency (ex: flood, fire, criminal activity, etc.), or 
for protection or preservation of the Leased Premises, Landlord or Landlord’s agent(s) shall be 
permitted access to the Leased Premises without prior notice. Nothing contained herein is intended 
to limit or prevent Landlord’s exercise of its governmental functions independent of this Lease. 

 
 

11. Default.  In the event of breach by Tenant of any of the terms of Lease, 
Landlord shall have the right to pursue all remedies available under Florida law, including the right 
to terminate the Lease and tenancy hereunder in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 83, 
Florida Statutes, as said statute may be amended from time to time. In the event that Landlord must 
bring an action to remove Tenant from the Leased Premises or otherwise to enforce the terms of 
this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all court costs and reasonable attorney's 
fees incurred in connection with said action, including all appellate proceedings related to said 
action. 
 

12. Liability.  The Landlord will not be liable for any damage, loss, or injury to 
persons or property occurring within the Leased Premises or upon the property, unless caused by 
Landlord’s gross negligence.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Landlord, in the 
absence of gross negligence, shall not be responsible for any damage caused by (a) bursting, 



leaking or running of any gas, water, or plumbing fixtures in, above, upon, below, or about the 
Leased Premises; (b) water on or coming through the roof, walls or otherwise; or (c) acts or neglect 
of other neighbors.  The Tenant is responsible for obtaining casualty and liability insurance for the 
protection of all of the Tenant’s personal property.  The Tenant indemnifies and holds the Landlord 
harmless from all claims for personal injury or property damage to Tenant or to Tenant’s guests 
or invitees arising out of or related to Tenant’s occupancy of the Leased Premises.  THE TENANT 
SHALL SECURE INSURANCE TO PROTECT THE TENANT AND THE TENANT’S 
PROPERTY.  All insurance, if any, carried by the Landlord to ensure the Leased Premises is for 
the exclusive benefit of the Landlord and does not cover any personal property of Tenant, co-
tenants, guests, or invitees. 
   

14. Taxes.  During the term of this Lease, Landlord shall pay and discharge all 
ad valorem real property taxes, if any, for the Leased Premises. 

 
15. Quiet enjoyment.  Upon performing all provisions of this lease, Tenant shall 

peacefully and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Leased Premises during the term of the Lease. 
 
16. Destruction of premises by casualty.  In the event that the Leased Premises 

are rendered untenantable by reason of fire, storm, explosion, hurricane or other casualty, the 
Landlord at the Landlord’s option, may repair the Leased Premises to make the same tenantable 
within ninety (90) days thereafter, or, at its option, may terminate this Lease.  In the event of such 
termination, the Landlord shall furnish the Tenant with thirty (30) days’ written notice, whereupon 
the Lease shall be terminated in accordance with such notice. The Landlord shall not be liable for 
injury to persons or damage to property caused by such casualty.  

 
17. Holdover.  A holdover occurs when, without Landlord’s permission, the 

Tenant or any other person fails to move out by the date on which the lease term expires.  If the 
Tenant holds over beyond the end of the lease term, the Tenant will be liable to pay double market 
rent pursuant to Florida Statute 83.58. Market rent shall be determined by the Landlord in its 
reasonable discretion. In addition, the Landlord may recover possession of the Leased Premises 
pursuant to Florida law. 

 
18. ABANDONED PERSONAL PROPERTY:  BY SIGNING THIS 

DOCUMENT THE TENANT AGREES THAT UPON SURRENDER OR 
ABANDONMENT, AS DEFINED BY CHAPTER 83, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE 
LANDLORD SHALL NOT BE LIABLE OR RESPONSIBLE FOR STORAGE OR 
DISPOSITION OF THE TENANT’S PERSONAL PROPERTY. 

 
The Tenant’s tenancy still exists, and the Tenant shall be liable for rent, 

during the time that the Tenant’s personal possessions remain in the Leased Premises after the 
Tenant’s household has personally ceased occupancy with the intent to vacate, until such time that 
personal possessions have been removed voluntarily or by legal means, subject to the provisions 
of Florida law, even if the Tenant has delivered the keys to the Leased Premises to the Landlord 
or the Landlord’s agent. 
 



  19. Radon Gas.  The following notice is given to the Tenant pursuant to Section 
404.056(8), Florida Statutes:  Radon is a naturally occurring radioactive gas that, when it has 
accumulated in a building in sufficient quantities, may present health risks to persons who are 
exposed to it over time.  Levels of radon that exceed federal and state guidelines have been found 
in buildings in Florida.  Additional information regarding radon and radon testing may be obtained 
from your local county public health unit. 
 

20. Water Intrusion and Mold Notice and Disclosure.  Water intrusion is any 
source of moisture.  The following are possible sources of water intrusion: steam from the bath or 
shower, steam from cooking, humidifiers, constant running water, house plants (watering), 
plumbing, wet or damp clothing, and roof leaks.  Water intrusion can be a precursor to mold.  Mold 
is a microscopic organism that is found virtually everywhere indoors and outdoors.  The presence 
of large quantities of molds can cause allergic symptoms similar to those caused by plant pollen. 
To prevent mold, water intrusion must be prevented and treated immediately.  The Tenant agrees 
that the Tenant shall use his or her best efforts to prevent any conditions in the Leased Premises 
that could create an environment conducive to mold growth.  You as the Tenant agree that you are 
responsible to prevent water intrusion and mold in your Leased Premises resulting from your 
activities.  In the event that mold growth conditions develop, you agree to remedy such conditions 
promptly.  You further agree that you shall take the following preventative steps to reduce the 
potential for water intrusion and mold growth: (a) always use exhaust fans or open the bathroom 
window while showering or bathing; (b) utilize the range hood fan while cooking; (c) immediately 
report in writing to Landlord leaks of any kind inside or on any part of the Leased Premises; 
excessive moisture or standing water inside or on any part of the Leased Premises; a water leak, 
excessive moisture or standing water in any community common areas; or in any part of the 
heating, air conditioning or ventilation system in the Leased Premises;  (d) allow fresh air 
movement within the Leased Premises; (e) immediately report to Landlord in writing any 
discoloration of walls or musty orders that may occur or any mold growth in or on the Leased 
Premises; (f) monitor plants and surrounding spores and walls and move plants periodically; (g) 
promptly remove any visible moisture accumulation in or on the Leased Premises, including on 
the walls, windows, floors, ceilings, and bathroom fixtures; mop up spills and thoroughly dry 
affected area as soon as possible after occurrences; and keep climate and moisture in the Leased 
Premises at reasonable levels; (h) clean and dust the Leased Premises regularly; and keep the 
Leased Premises, particularly the kitchen and bathroom, clean. 
 
   The Tenant acknowledges that he or she, as the occupant of the Leased 
Premises, is in a better position than Landlord to observe conditions affecting the habitability of 
the Leased Premises.  Tenant agrees to notify Landlord immediately upon observing any condition 
affecting habitability of the Leased Premises. Resident shall be liable to Landlord for damages 
sustained to the Leased Premises as a result of the failure of resident to comply with the terms of 
this section of the Lease. A violation of this section of the Lease shall be deemed to be a material 
non-compliance by the resident under the terms of this Lease and the Landlord shall be entitled to 
exercise all rights and remedies in favor of Landlord based upon said violation.  Additionally, the 
Tenant, on his or her behalf and on behalf of Tenant's dependents, guests, invitees, personal 
representatives, heirs, successors and assigns, hereby releases, waives, discharges and holds 
Landlord harmless from any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, or expenses of any 



nature whatsoever arising out of or related to conditions within the Leased Premises about which 
Tenant failed to notify Landlord and which affect the habitability of the Leased Premises. 
 
  21. Lead Based Paint Disclosure:  If the Leased Premises were built prior to 1978, 
Landlord hereby gives the following disclosure to Tenant.  Throughout this disclosure, “Landlord” shall be 
referred to as “Lessor” and “Tenant” or shall be referred to as “Lessee.”   
 
 “Housing built before 1978 may contain lead-based paint.  Lead from paint, paint chips, and dust can pose 
health hazards if not managed properly.  Lead exposure is extremely harmful to young children and 
pregnant women.  Before renting pre-1978 housing, Lessors must disclose the presence of lead-based paint 
and/or lead-based paint hazards in the dwelling.  Lessees must also receive a federally approved pamphlet 
on lead poisoning prevention.”  Throughout the rest of this disclosure, lead-based paint will be referred to 
as “LBP” and lead-based paint hazards will be referred to as “LBPH.”   
 
   a. LBP/LBPH IN HOUSING:  Lessor has no knowledge of LBP/LBPH in 
the housing and  no available LBP/LBPH records or reports, except as indicated:  
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________  
 
   b. CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  Lessee has received the pamphlet 
entitled “Protect Your Family From Lead in Your Home” and all of the information specified in 
subparagraph a above.  Lessor and Lessee have reviewed the information above and each one certifies, to 
the best of his or her knowledge, that the information he or she has provided is true and accurate. 
 

22. Miscellaneous.  The Tenant shall not, without the prior written consent of 
the Landlord, change or add any additional locks to the Leased Premises or to any of the doors to 
the said Leased Premises.  Upon termination or expiration of the lease, the Tenant shall leave the 
premises in the same condition as they existed upon the commencement of the Lease, or the 
Landlord will charge a cleaning fee to the Tenant based upon the expense incurred by landlord to 
properly clean and restore the Leased Premises. 

 
23. Notices.  All notices or demands to be given hereunder shall be given to the 

Landlord at the address shown at the beginning of the lease and to the Tenant at the address for 
the leased premises.   
 

24. Binding effect.  This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, personal 
representatives, assigns and successors of the parties hereto. 

 
25. Entire Agreement.  This agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the 

parties. 
 
26. Severability of provisions.  In the event that any provision or a portion of 

any provision of this lease is declared unenforceable or invalid by any court or administrative body 



having competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of the lease shall be deemed enforceable 
and shall remain in full force and effect. 

27. Attorney's fees and Venue.  In the event that either party must enforce the
terms of this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all court costs and reasonable 
attorney's fees incurred in connection with all court proceedings, including appellate proceedings.  
Venue for all actions relating to this Lease and the Tenant’s residence in the Leased Premises shall 
lie exclusively in a state court of competent jurisdiction in Lake County, Florida.   

28. Waiver of Jury Trial. The parties hereby expressly and irrevocably waive
any rights to a jury trial in any action relating to this Lease and/or Tenant’s occupancy of the 
Leased Premises. 

29. Non-Waiver. Landlord’s waiver of any default or breach of any term,
condition or covenant of this Lease by Tenant shall not be deemed a waiver of any other breach 
by Tenant of the same or any other term, condition or covenant of this Lease. 

Witnesses: Landlord: 
CITY OF UMATILLA 

_________________________ By:   
Witness Signature  Scott Blankenship, City Manager 
_________________________ 
Printed Name 

_________________________ 
Witness Signature 
_________________________ 
Printed Name 

Witnesses: Tenant: 

_________________________ ____________________________________ 
Witness Signature  Jason O’Brien 
_________________________ 
Printed Name  

_________________________ 
Witness Signature 
_________________________ 
Printed Name 



1 

CITY OF UMATILLA 
AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  June 29, 2021     MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 

SUBJECT:  SRF Agreement No. WW350752, City Bid No. 2021-01 – Umatilla to Eustis 

FM ISSUE: Contract Price Increase 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY:   Due to unprecedented and unforeseeable increases in demand and 
price for certain materials, specifically PVC products, arising out of force majeure circumstances 
for some providers of inputs, it has become uneconomical for the contractor to complete the 
project within the Contract Time for the Contract Price, even in light of the contractor’s possible 
exposure to liquidated damages for delay. However, the necessary materials can be acquired 
timely at an increased cost, which will allow the Contractor to offer enhanced assurances of 
completion within the Contract Time. Accordingly, Contract Price shall be increased in order to 
avoid substantial delays in completion of the Project. The Contractor waives any right to 
extensions of the Contract Time or declaration of force majeure in connection with the cost, 
availability, or delay in delivery of PVC products due to circumstances arising or which have 
become foreseeable prior to the date of this change order.  

#1 – Change in Contract Price:  Based on increases in unit prices, the change shall not exceed 
$288,830.52. Material purchased in excess of the quantities specified shall be charged to the 
Owner in the amount of the original bid prices, the intent being that the total contract price 
increase resulting from this change order shall not exceed $288.830.52.  

#2 - Liquidated Damages. Section 4.03 of the Contract, Liquidated Damages, is amended as 
follows:  

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph
4.01 above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not
completed within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any extensions
thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize the delays,
expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual
loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of
requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for
delay (but not as a penalty):
1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $2,000.00 for each day that expires
after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 4.02.A
above for Substantial Completion until the total amount of liquidated damages paid
equals or exceeds $288,830.52. Thereafter, Contractor shall pay Owner $750.00 per day
until the Work is substantially complete.



2 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval  

FISCAL IMPACTS:   $288.830.52 (Request SRF Change Order) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

COUNCIL ACTION:   

Reviewed by City Attorney   □Yes □No √N/A

Reviewed by City Engineer    □Yes □No √N/A



Change Order 

Change Order No. ________ 

Date of Issuance:  Effective Date: July 6, 2021 

Owner: City of Umatilla, Florida Owner's Contract No.:       

Contractor: Southern Underground Industries, Inc. Contractor’s Project No.: 

Engineer: Mittauer & Associates, Inc. Engineer's Project No.: 

Project:  SRF Wastewater Interconnection with the City of Eustis, SRF Agreement No. 
WW350752, City Bid No. 2021-01  

Upon execution of this Change Order, the Contract is amended as provided herein. All other 
provisions in the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.  

1. Change in Contract Price. Due to unprecedented and unforeseeable increases in demand 
and price for certain materials, specifically PVC products, arising out of force majeure 
circumstances for some providers of inputs, it has become uneconomical for the contractor to 
complete the project within the Contract Time for the Contract Price, even in light of the 
contractor’s possible exposure to liquidated damages for delay. However, the necessary materials 
can be acquired timely at an increased cost, which will allow the Contractor to offer enhanced 
assurances of completion within the Contract Time. Accordingly, Contract Price shall be increased 
in order to avoid substantial delays in completion of the Project. The Contractor waives any right 
to extensions of the Contract Time or declaration of force majeure in connection with the cost, 
availability, or delay in delivery of PVC products due to circumstances arising or which have 
become foreseeable prior to the date of this change order. The Contract Price is accordingly 
changed as follows:

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: 
$ Pursuant to Unit Prices Attached to Bid and as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

Increase of this Change Order: 
$ Based on increases in unit prices as set forth on Exhibit “A”, but not to exceed 288,830.52. 
Material purchased in excess of the quantities specified in Exhibit “A” shall be charged to the 
Owner in the amount of the original bid prices, the intent being that the total contract price 
increase resulting from this change order shall not exceed $288.830.52.  

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: 
$ Pursuant to Unit Prices, with total Contract Price increase not to exceed $288.830.52. 

A detailed breakdown of the price increase is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 

2. Liquidated Damages. Section 4.03 of the Contract, Liquidated Damages, is amended as 
follows:
A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 
above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed within



the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance 
with the Contract. The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in 
proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not 
completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor 
agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty): 

1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $2,000.00 for each day that expires after
the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 4.02.A above for
Substantial Completion until the total amount of liquidated damages paid equals or exceeds
$288,830.52. Thereafter, Contractor shall pay Owner $750.00 per day until the Work is
substantially complete. 

RECOMMENDED: 

___________________________ 

Engineer 

Mittauer & Associates, Inc.  

Date: _______________________ 

ACCEPTED ACCEPTED 

OWNER CONTRACTOR 

__________________________ ___________________________ 

City of Umatilla  Southern Underground Industries, Inc. 

By: Scott Blankenship  By: Frank D’Alessandro 

City Manager  Vice President of Operations 

Date:_____________________ Date:_____________________ 



Exhibit “A” 

Item Quantity Bid Time Price Current Pricing Increase 
Unit 
Price Ext Price Unit Price Ext Price 

12" C900 DR25 PVC 7540 $14.95 $112,723.00 $19.62 $147,934.80 $35,211.80 
12" DR 18 Green PVC 
Fusible 4320 $35.00 $151,200.00 $39.15 $169,128.00 $17,928.00 
18" PVC Sewer Pipe 672 $25.08 $16,853.76 $30.84 $20,724.48 $3,870.72 
16" C905 DR 25 PVC 11000 $25.52 $280,720.00 $37.64 $414,040.00 $133,320.00 
16" C905 DR 18 
Fusbile PVC  10000 $57.50 $575,000.00 $67.35 $673,500.00 $98,500.00 

$288,830.52 



1 

CITY OF UMATILLA 
AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 

DATE:  June 29, 2021 MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021 

SUBJECT:  SRF Agreement No. WW350752 - Amendment 

#1 ISSUE: Increase Loan amount for funding shortfall 

BACKGROUND SUMMARY: The City entered into a State Revolving Loan (SRF) Agreement 
administered by the Florida Department of Environment Protection (FDEP) for $3,853,300.  This 
loan amount was based on the Capital Finance Plan submitted to the FDEP and the Engineers 
estimate of the work.  The lowest bid was received by Southern Underground Industries; 
however, the bid was higher than initial funding award.  This Loan Amendment will cover the 
$368,958 shortfall and has been approved by FDEP.   

The updated SRF Loan amount will be $4,222,258. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval of Loan Amendment #1 

FISCAL IMPACTS:   $368,958 SRF Loan increase 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

COUNCIL ACTION:   

Reviewed by City Attorney   □Yes □No √N/A

Reviewed by City Engineer    □Yes □No √N/A











1 Police Retirement Board Reappointments 

 

 
CITY OF UMATILLA 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT 
 

 
DATE:   July 2, 2021     MEETING DATE:  July 6, 2021-------------------------
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
---------------- 
SUBJECT:   Police Retirement Board--- 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
----------------------------------------------------------------- 
ISSUE:   Appointments to Police Retirement Board 
 
 
BACKGROUND SUMMARY:   The Police Retirement Board is comprised of five members, two of which 
are required by State Statute to be appointed by the City Council and are required to be City residents. 
The appointment is for a two-year term.  
 
Police Retirement Board members up for reappointment are Police Officer Josh Brown and Terry Olson. 
Terry Olson has not attended a meeting in 3 years and the Officers have requested a new member be 
appointed so that a quorum is present at all meetings. Lake County Sheriff’s Deputy Eric Van Buskirk is 
a City resident and he has expressed interest in serving on this board. Current Board member Police 
Officer Josh Brown expressed interest in continuing to serve. 
 
One of the other members of the Board is designated as the Fifth Board Member which is voted upon 
by the Board and for which Council Administrative Approval is required.  There are no residency 
requirements for this Board Member; it may be any person who has a desire to serve.  Finance Director 
Regina Frazier was approved by the Police Retirement Board to continue to serve in her capacity as the 
Fifth Board member during their Board meeting on June 10, 2021. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:   Approval of the reappointment of Officer Brown and the appointment 
of Eric Van Buskirk to serve on the Umatilla Police Retirement Board. Administrative approval of the 
selection of Regina Frazier to serve as the Fifth Board Member. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: N/A  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by City Attorney  □Yes  □No  √N/A 
 
Reviewed by City Engineer  □Yes  □No  √N/A 


	UMATILLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	ADP23BA.tmp
	UMATILLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Call to Order

	ADP4493.tmp
	UMATILLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	The Pledge of Allegiance was led and Invocation given by Mayor Adcock.
	The meeting was called to order at 6:03 p.m.

	Resolution (with Exhibits) (01804729).PDF
	RESOLUTION
	Insert from: "7777.pdf"
	ARTICLE I.  AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION
	Section 101. First Amendment to Constitute Contract
	Section 102. Construction
	Section 103. Rules of Construction
	Section 104. Amendments to the Original Indenture
	(a) The definitions of "Initial Reset Date," "Financial Advisor," "Reset Date," and "Reset Period" in Section 101 of the Original Bond Indenture are hereby deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following and the definition of "5 Year MMD" is...
	"Initial Reset Date" shall be January 1, 2023.
	"Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor" means Hamlin Capital Advisors, LLC and its successors and assigns.
	All usage of the term "Financial Advisor" shall be deemed to instead be the term "Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor".
	"Reset Date" shall mean the Initial Reset Date and thereafter the first day of each Reset Period which shall be on a January 1.
	"Reset Period" shall mean a period of ten (10) years, or with respect to the final Reset Period prior to the maturity date of the Series 2012B Bonds five (5) years, in duration ending on the last day of December, or on the maturity date of the Series ...
	"(a) The Series 2012B Bonds shall be issuable as registered bonds in Authorized Denominations, shall be numbered appropriately, shall bear interest payable semiannually commencing on January 1, 2022, and on each July 1 and January 1 thereafter at the...
	"(d) On each Reset Date, a new Reset Period shall be elected by the Corporation having a duration of either 10 years, or 5 years with respect to the final Reset Period prior to the maturity date of the Series 2012B Bonds, from such Reset Date.  On eac...
	(i) Section 1304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting the section in its entirety and substituting the following therefor:

	(a)  if to the Corporation, at Community Supports, Inc., c/o DSI Management, 1890 State Road 436, Suite 300, Winter Park, Florida 32792 (Attention: Chief Executive Officer), phone number: (407) 645-3211;
	(b)  if to the Issuer, at 1 South Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784 (Attention:  City Manager), phone number: (352) 669-3125;
	(c)  if to the Bond Trustee, at U.S. Bank National Association, 225 Water Street, Suite 700, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 (Attention: Global Corporate Trust), phone number: (904) 358-5363;
	(d)  if to the Underwriter, at Odeon Capital Group LLC, Municipals Department, 750 Lexington Avenue, 27th Floor New York, New York 10022, phone number: (704) 317-8535;
	(e)  if to the Bondholder Representative, at Hamlin Capital, 640 Fifth Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, New York 10019, phone number (212) 752-8777; and
	(f)  if to the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor, at Hamlin Capital Advisors, LLC, 5550 West Executive Drive, Suite 235, Tampa, Florida 33609, phone number (813) 280-1002.
	A duplicate copy of each demand, notice, approval, request, consent, opinion or other communication given hereunder (i) by either the Issuer or the Bond Trustee to the other shall also be given to the Corporation, the Bondholder Representative and the...
	No notices shall be send to beneficial owners of Hamlin Investor Bonds without the consent of the Bondholder Representative, including without limitation, notices of failure to comply with covenants and Events of Default.
	Any such communication also may be transmitted to the appropriate party by Electronic Means capable of producing a written record and shall be deemed given or made at the time of such transmission if, and only if, such transmission of notice shall be ...

	Section 105. Direction to Authenticate
	Section 106. Purchase in Lieu of Redemption

	ARTICLE II.  CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE ARRANGEMENT
	Section 201. Conditions Precedent
	Section 202. Series 2012 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement

	ARTICLE III.  MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 301. First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture
	Section 302. Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further Amendment
	Section 303. Counterparts
	Section 304. Severability
	Section 305. Effective Date


	Insert from: "CD27.pdf"
	ARTICLE I.  AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION
	Section 101. First Amendment to Constitute Contract
	Section 102. Construction
	Section 103. Rules of Construction
	Section 104. Amendments to the Original Indenture
	(a) The definitions of "Initial Reset Date," "Financial Advisor," "Reset Date," and "Reset Period" in Section 101 of the Original Bond Indenture are hereby deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following and the definition of "5 Year MMD" is...
	"Initial Reset Date" shall be January 1, 2023.
	"Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor" means Hamlin Capital Advisors, LLC and its successors and assigns.
	All usage of the term "Financial Advisor" shall be deemed to instead be the term "Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor".
	"Reset Date" shall mean the Initial Reset Date and thereafter the first day of each Reset Period which shall be on a January 1.
	"Reset Period" shall mean a period of ten (10) years, or with respect to the final Reset Period prior to the maturity date of the Series 2012B Bonds five (5) years, in duration ending on the last day of December, or on the maturity date of the Series ...
	"(a) The Series 2012B Bonds shall be issuable as registered bonds in Authorized Denominations, shall be numbered appropriately, shall bear interest payable semiannually commencing on January 1, 2022, and on each July 1 and January 1 thereafter at the...
	"(d) On each Reset Date, a new Reset Period shall be elected by the Corporation having a duration of either 10 years, or 5 years with respect to the final Reset Period prior to the maturity date of the Series 2012B Bonds, from such Reset Date.  On eac...
	(i) Section 1304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting the section in its entirety and substituting the following therefor:

	(a)  if to the Corporation, at Community Supports, Inc., c/o DSI Management, 1890 State Road 436, Suite 300, Winter Park, Florida 32792 (Attention: Chief Executive Officer), phone number: (407) 645-3211;
	(b)  if to the Issuer, at 1 South Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784 (Attention:  City Manager), phone number: (352) 669-3125;
	(c)  if to the Bond Trustee, at U.S. Bank National Association, 225 Water Street, Suite 700, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 (Attention: Global Corporate Trust), phone number: (904) 358-5363;
	(d)  if to the Underwriter, at Odeon Capital Group LLC, Municipals Department, 750 Lexington Avenue, 27th Floor New York, New York 10022, phone number: (704) 317-8535;
	(e)  if to the Bondholder Representative, at Hamlin Capital, 640 Fifth Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, New York 10019, phone number (212) 752-8777; and
	(f)  if to the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor, at Hamlin Capital Advisors, LLC, 5550 West Executive Drive, Suite 235, Tampa, Florida 33609, phone number (813) 280-1002.
	A duplicate copy of each demand, notice, approval, request, consent, opinion or other communication given hereunder (i) by either the Issuer or the Bond Trustee to the other shall also be given to the Corporation, the Bondholder Representative and the...
	No notices shall be send to beneficial owners of Hamlin Investor Bonds without the consent of the Bondholder Representative, including without limitation, notices of failure to comply with covenants and Events of Default.
	Any such communication also may be transmitted to the appropriate party by Electronic Means capable of producing a written record and shall be deemed given or made at the time of such transmission if, and only if, such transmission of notice shall be ...

	Section 105. Direction to Authenticate
	Section 106. Purchase in Lieu of Redemption

	ARTICLE II.  CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE ARRANGEMENT
	Section 201. Conditions Precedent
	Section 202. Series 2012 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement

	ARTICLE III.  MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 301. First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture
	Section 302. Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further Amendment
	Section 303. Counterparts
	Section 304. Severability
	Section 305. Effective Date


	Insert from: "39DF.pdf"
	ARTICLE I.  AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION
	Section 101. First Amendment to Constitute Contract
	Section 102. Construction
	Section 103. Rules of Construction
	Section 104. Amendments to the Original Indenture
	(a) The definition of "Financial Advisor" in Section 101 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby deleted and replaced with the following defined term:
	"Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor" means Hamlin Capital Advisors, LLC and its successors and assigns."
	(d) Section 304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting such section in its entirety and substituting the following as Section 304 thereof:
	(f) Section 1304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting the section in its entirety and substituting the following therefor:

	(a)  if to the Corporation, at Community Supports, Inc., c/o DSI Management, 1890 State Road 436, Suite 300, Winter Park, Florida 32792 (Attention: Chief Executive Officer), phone number: (407) 645-3211;
	(b)  if to the Issuer, at 1 South Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784 (Attention:  City Manager), phone number: (352) 669-3125;
	(c)  if to the Bond Trustee, at U.S. Bank National Association, 225 Water Street, Suite 700, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 (Attention: Global Corporate Trust), phone number: (904) 358-5363;
	(d)  if to the Underwriter, at Odeon Capital Group LLC, Municipals Department, 750 Lexington Avenue, 27th Floor New York, New York 10022, phone number: (704) 317-8535;
	(e)  if to the Bondholder Representative, at Hamlin Capital, 640 Fifth Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, New York 10019, phone number (212) 752-8777; and
	(f)  if to the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor, at Hamlin Capital Advisors, LLC, 5550 West Executive Drive, Suite 235, Tampa, Florida 33609, phone number (813) 280-1002.
	A duplicate copy of each demand, notice, approval, request, consent, opinion or other communication given hereunder (i) by either the Issuer or the Bond Trustee to the other shall also be given to the Corporation, the Bondholder Representative and the...
	No notices shall be sent to beneficial owners of Hamlin Investor Bonds without the consent of the Bondholder Representative, including without limitation, notices of failure to comply with covenants and Events of Default.
	Any such communication also may be transmitted to the appropriate party by Electronic Means capable of producing a written record and shall be deemed given or made at the time of such transmission if, and only if, such transmission of notice shall be ...

	Section 105. Direction to Authenticate

	ARTICLE II.  CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE ARRANGEMENT
	Section 201. Conditions Precedent
	Section 202. Series 2016 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement

	ARTICLE III.  MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 301. First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture
	Section 302. Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further Amendment
	Section 303. Counterparts
	Section 304. Severability
	Section 305. Effective Date


	Insert from: "491C.pdf"
	ARTICLE I.  AMENDMENTS; AUTHENICATION DIRECTION
	Section 101. First Amendment to Constitute Contract
	Section 102. Construction
	Section 103. Rules of Construction
	Section 104. Amendments to the Original Indenture
	(a) The definitions of "Initial Reset Date" and "Financial Advisor" in Section 101 of the Original Bond Indenture are hereby deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following:
	"Initial Reset Date" shall be January 1, 2029.
	"Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor" means Hamlin Capital Advisors, LLC and its successors and assigns.
	"(b) The initial interest rate on the Series 2018B Bonds is an adjustable rate set as provided in this Section 203.  The initial interest rate related to the Initial Advance from the proceeds of the Series 2018B Bonds is 5.77%.  The interest rate on e...
	(e) Section 1304 of the Original Bond Indenture is hereby amended by deleting the section in its entirety and substituting the following therefor:
	(a) if to the Corporation, at Community Supports, Inc., c/o DSI Management, 1890 State Road 436, Suite 300, Winter Park, Florida 32792 (Attention: Chief Executive Officer), phone number: (407) 645-3211;

	(b)  if to the Issuer, at 1 South Central Avenue, Umatilla, Florida 32784 (Attention:  City Manager), phone number: (352) 669-3125;
	(c)  if to the Bond Trustee, at U.S. Bank National Association, 225 Water Street, Suite 700, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 (Attention: Global Corporate Trust), phone number: (904) 358-5363;
	(d)  if to the Underwriter, at Odeon Capital Group LLC, Municipals Department, 750 Lexington Avenue, 27th Floor New York, New York 10022, phone number: (704) 317-8535;
	(e)  if to the Bondholder Representative, at Hamlin Capital, 640 Fifth Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, New York 10019, phone number (212) 752-8777; and
	(f)  if to the Limited Special Purpose Financial Advisor, at Hamlin Capital Advisors, LLC, 5550 West Executive Drive, Suite 235, Tampa, Florida 33609, phone number (813) 280-1002.
	A duplicate copy of each demand, notice, approval, request, consent, opinion or other communication given hereunder (i) by either the Issuer or the Bond Trustee to the other shall also be given to the Corporation, the Bondholder Representative and the...
	No notices shall be sent to beneficial owners of Hamlin Investor Bonds without the consent of the Bondholder Representative, including without limitation, notices of failure to comply with covenants and Events of Default.
	Any such communication also may be transmitted to the appropriate party by Electronic Means capable of producing a written record and shall be deemed given or made at the time of such transmission if, and only if, such transmission of notice shall be ...


	ARTICLE II.  CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; BOND HELD UNDER BONDHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE ARRANGEMENT
	Section 201. Conditions Precedent
	Section 202. Series 2018 Bonds Held Under Bondholder Representative Arrangement

	ARTICLE III.  MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 301. First Amendment Construed with Original Indenture
	Section 302. Original Indenture as Supplemented to Remain in Effect; Further Amendment
	Section 303. Counterparts
	Section 304. Severability
	Section 305. Effective Date


	Insert from: "93F1.pdf"
	(a) This Agreement and any claim, controversy, dispute or cause of action (whether in contract or tort or otherwise) based upon, arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and be governed by the law (without giv...
	(b) The Corporation hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits itself to the exclusive jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida and of the Circuit Court of the Fifth Judicial Circuit located in Lake Count...
	(c) The Corporation irrevocably and unconditionally waives any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any such suit, action or proceeding described in subsection (b) of this Section and brought in any court referred to ...


	2021 Mid Yr Exhibit A.pdf
	TRIM




